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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEREE

Year ended/as at 31 December

HBZ1283181LEE MW12831H

2015 2014 Change
2015 F 20144 )
Operating results (HK$°000) ReEx&E(THERT)
Revenue WA 2,869,846 2,683,408 6.9%
Gross profit EF 787,476 736,384 6.9%
Profit before tax B F BT Y A 244,439 246,867 -1.0%
Profit for the year F R 184,676 202,947 -9.0%
Profit for the year attributable to RNRABEA AEIEFREN
owners of the Company 172,674 194,393 -11.2%
Financial position (HK$'000) MR (F#&T)
Total assets W8 EE 1,809,711 1,621,266 11.6%
Net current assets TRENE EERE 671,204 611,326 9.8%
Bank borrowings SRITER 160,541 233,016 -31.1%
Net assets BEFE 1,096,689 913,113 20.1%
Net assets attributable to owners of RKRBEA ANELEEFE
the Company 1,058,352 876,320 20.8%
Per share data (HK cents) FREEE GBL)
Dividend per share B R
— Interim — R Ef 1.5 1.0 50.0%
— Final — R 25 235 =
— Total — #ast 4.0 3.5 14.3%
Earnings per share B2
— Basic — HEAK 10.09 12.37 -18.4%
— Diluted — g 10.07 12.35 -18.5%
Net assets value per share BREEFE 62.7 55.3 13.4%
Share price as at 31 December m®12 A31 BHRE 81.0 75.0 8.0%
Key statistics FEHE
Gross profit margin (%) EFZE (%) 27.4% 27 4% =
Net profit margin (%) TR (%) 6.4% 7.6% -15.8%
Inventory turnover (days) FERAERE(CRE) 61.1 70.0 _12.7%
Debtors’ turnover (days) B AR EERE (KE) 68.5 67.4 1.6%
Creditors’ turnover (days) EREAREEXE(KE) 42.4 50.0 -15.2%
Payout ratio (%) KB K (%) 37.9% 28.5% 33.0%
Dividend yield (%) % B0 25 2R (%) 4.9% 47% 4.3%
Return on total assets (%) 48 & FE [0 IR K (%) 10.2% 12.5% -18.4%
Return on net assets (%) BEFELRE (%) 16.8% 22.2% —24.3%
Gearing ratio (%) BEBELE (%) 14.6% 25.5% —42.7%
Current ratio (%) MmENEL 3 (%) 195.5% 187.6% 4.2%
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ESRYE

On behalf of the board (the “"Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Sinomax Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (altogether, the "Group”), | have the great pleasure
of presenting to you our annual report for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 (the “Reporting Period”).

2015 was a challenging year. Facing with different business
environments, our three business segments had different
performance during the Reporting Period. We experienced
remarkable growth in retail and corporate sales, a moderate
growth in polyurethane foam sales and a slight decline in export
sales.

We strategically focus on the People’s Republic of China (other
than Hong Kong and Macau) (the “PRC”) and the United States
of America (the “US") markets. During the Reporting Period, we
had made the following major investments:

o acquired a 100% equity interest in Shanghai Luen Tai
Polyurethane Co. Ltd.* (_E/8 B K /G4 B R A 7)) (“Shanghai
Luen Tai") in the PRC

° invested in Dormeo North America, LLC (“Dormeo”) in the
US, which became the Company’s associated company

o concluded the setting up of a new manufacturing facility in
the US

In February 2016, we entered into an agreement to acquire 51%
equity interest in Chengdu Xingang Sponge Co., Ltd.* (A &P #T/E
/B48 AR A 7)) (“Chengdu Xingang”) in the PRC.

We expect the above investments would make profit
contributions to the Group in the coming years. Upon completion
of the set up of a new manufacturing facility in the US, we are able
to provide US made products to capture different market
segments in the US. With the presence of production facilities in
both the US and the PRC, we can provide global logistic support
to customers with different needs.

English translated name is for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESRIE

The listing platform has enable the Company to gain access to
the international capital market and the Company has completed
a placing and top-up subscription of 100,000,000 shares at
HK$1.06 per share in May 2015. The net proceeds from the
subscription of approximately HK$101.8 million were used to fund
the Group's business expansion in the US and for general working
capital purposes.

The global economy will be highly dynamic in the coming year.
We will closely monitor the latest developments and will continue
to focus on the PRC and the US markets. Other than the existing
brands like “Sinomax”, "SPA Supreme”, "Tung Ah”,
"ComforZen” and “"Dream Serenity”, we would introduce and
promote more brands like “Customizer” and “Zeopedic” to
target different sectors of the markets and customers.

¥

"Zeopedic” memory foam pillow
[Zeopedic] BB 434

With a healthy financial position, the Group will continue to seek
for other strategic acquisition opportunities, including but not
limited to acquisitions of brands, distribution networks and/or
production facilities.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank all staff members for their dedication to the Group and the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), valued
customers, suppliers, bankers and other business partners for the
continuous support.

Lam Chi Fan
Chairman
18 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

REVENUE BY OPERATING SEGMENTS

During the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group increased by
approximately HK$186.4 million or 6.9% to approximately
HK$2,869.8 million (the financial year ended 31 December 2014
("FY2014"): approximately HK$2,683.4 million). Retail and
corporate sales and polyurethane foam sales continued to record
substantial revenue growth for the Reporting Period comparing
with FY2014:

REE 7B D HWA

RRER > REBRNBAEREL1864B BB ITH69%
42,8698 B EBIL(E=2014F12 431 H IEMEAF
E([2014FMHEE]) - £92,6834BEET) - NIk
S TERAFHENMBRERAEE - H20144F
R F LB ESFEARKRAEE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE

2015 2014 Changes

20154 2014 4 b=k

HK$'000 HK$'000 %

THET T %

Export sales HAEE 1,198,664 1,374,634 -12.8

Retail and corporate sales ZEENRARIHEHE 567,137 380,522 49.0

Polyurethane foam sales BEBERIEE 1,104,045 928,252 18.9

Total et 2,869,846 2,683,408 6.9
EXPORT SALES HOHE

The Group sells its visco-elastic products on a wholesale basis
primarily to leading retailers in the US. These US retailers typically
resell the products to consumers through their own country-wide
retail networks. The products are sold under own, licensed or
third-party brands.

The Group has been successful in developing its business in the
US market. However, the strict US-only buying guidelines and
retailers’ preferences for US made products restricted the Group’s
growth in the US market. During the Reporting Period, though
there has been a slight increase in terms of quantity sold, the
amount of export sales dropped by approximately HK$176.0
million or 12.8% to approximately HK$1,198.7 million (FY2014:
approximately HK$1,374.6 million).

Own brand product - “ComforZen” memory foam pillow

B mhEEMS — [ ComforZen | iR B/ 41D

AEETEUHEIARXBIZTEHHELEEE
Em MEXBTER-—REBBEELREZENTERSE
BEEMTHEE ERABERE RERMEIFE=
TR E

AEBIBFNRERTISAMER - R BATNEEE
BEEESINTEmRRAEAER AR EER BT
REEREETIHHIER - RREHK  REHEHE
WM EA  HOBESTERIN17608EE TR 12.8%
EM11987BEBTT(014FEHEE © #91,374.6 A
BH8I) °

Licensed brand product - “Homedics” memory foam topper

B E M — [Homedics | LR /E /R K2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWED

RETAIL AND CORPORATE SALES

The Group sells its products under its “SINOMAX" brand through
its retail networks comprise of stand-alone retail shops (the “Life
Stores”) and concession counters in department stores in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Macau. The Group also conducts direct sales
to corporate and other customers in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Online sales are also maintained by the Group.

The strong growth in revenue from retail and corporate sales was
mainly driven by the increased sales of products under the
Group's flagship brand “SINOMAX". During the Reporting
Period, sales to various corporate customers recorded a
substantially high growth.

In terms of sales channel, same-store sales recorded a decrease
of approximately 1.1% for the Reporting Period. Same-store sales
for each of Life Stores and concession counters decreased by
approximately 3.7% and 0.3% respectively for the Reporting
Period. During the Reporting Period, the Group opened
seventeen new Life Stores in Hong Kong and in the PRC.

POLYURETHANE FOAM SALES

The Group supplies quality polyurethane foam on a wholesale
basis to furniture manufacturers in the PRC under the “Tung Ah”

(3385) brand.

As announced on 23 January 2015 and approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 6 March 2015, the
Group acquired a 100% equity interest in Shanghai Luen Tai
which contributed revenue of approximately RMB162.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$200.4 million) and profit after tax
of approximately RMB19.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$23.4 million) to the Group during the Reporting Period since
completion of the acquisition.

Revenue from polyurethane foam sales increased by
approximately HK$175.8 million or 18.9% from approximately
HK$928.3 million for FY2014 to approximately HK$1,104.0 million
for the Reporting Period due to the successful acquisition of
Shanghai Luen Tai as well as the increasing demand for high
quality furniture and home accessories in the PRC market, driving
the rise in demand for the Group’s polyurethane foam during the
Reporting Period.

10 SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

GROSS PROFIT

With an increase of approximately 6.9% in the Group's revenue,
gross profit (“GP") increased by approximately HK$51.1 million or
6.9% to approximately HK$787.5 million during the Reporting
Period as compared to approximately HK$736.4 million for
FY2014.

The GP margin of 27.4% during the Reporting Period remained
the same as in FY2014. For the Reporting Period, the cost of
chemicals, which are the major components of the Group's
product manufacturing cost, decreased by approximately 23.7%
while on the other hand, the average selling price decreased by
approximately 18.5% as compared to FY2014. However, it was
offset by the original equipment manufacturing purchases from
the US manufacturers with a relatively lower GP margin.

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs for the Reporting Period increased
by approximately HK$10.7 million or 3.2% to approximately
HK$342.4 million, as compared to approximately HK$331.8 million
for FY2014. The increase was mainly due to the increase in staff
costs and rental as a result of the newly opened Life Stores, and
the increase in sales commission.

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period increased by
approximately HK$7.0 million or 4.5% to approximately HK$162.6
million as compared to approximately HK$155.5 million for
FY2014.

Other expenses for the Reporting Period mainly consisted of
research and development expenses amounting to approximately
HK$39.8 million as compared to approximately HK$16.0 million
for FY2014. The Group has put much more resources on
improving and developing more foam features to meet the
increasing customers’ needs.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the Reporting Period decreased by approximately
HK$18.3 million or 9.0% to approximately HK$184.7 million as
compared to approximately HK$202.9 million for FY2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWED

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The issued ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 10 July 2014 (the “Listing
Date"), the net proceeds received by the Group from the Global
Offering (as defined in the prospectus of the Company dated 30
June 2014 (the “Prospectus”)) amounted to approximately
HK$127.1 million after deducting underwriting commissions and
all related expenses. The Group has fully utilized the net proceeds
in accordance with the proposed application set out in the
Prospectus.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group was healthy as at 31
December 2015. Net cash from operating activities during the
Reporting Period amounted to HK$406.3 million. It was further
enhanced by the net proceeds received by the Company from
the top-up placing of new Shares completed during the Reporting
Period (further details as were disclosed under the paragraph
headed "“Equity-Linked Agreements” in the Directors’ Report). As
at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$671.2 million as compared to approximately
HK$611.3 million as at 31 December 2014.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had banking facilities (which
included unsecured bank borrowings and bills payables)
amounted to approximately HK$1,251.8 million of which
approximately HK$220.0 million was utilized (31 December 2014:
banking facilities amounted to approximately HK$1,011.7 million
of which approximately HK$325.4 million was utilized).

As at 31 December 2015, the bills payables of the Group were
secured by bank deposits of approximately HK$8.5 million (as at
31 December 2014: approximately HK$14.8 million).

12 SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWED

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group's capital expenditure for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately HK$86.1 million which amount was
mainly expended for the purchase of the Group’s plant and

- ENEGEY

i&%ﬁﬂf‘aﬁ$§%E’JﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁSMﬁ%%n & KIA
R ANEE B AR B AR S =S

machinery.
Financial ratios Bt =
As at
i
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
20154 2014 5
12H31H 12H31H
Current ratio™ TRENELER M 195.5% 187.6%
Quick ratio® RENEL R @ 153.0% 130.5%
Gearing ratio® BEBEBELERO 14.6% 25.5%
Debt to equity ratio® B ML T N/ATEH N/A @A
Notes: 5T

m Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities.

@ Quick ratio is equal to current assets less inventories and divided by
current liabilities.

(& Gearing ratio is derived by dividing interest-bearing debt incurred in the
ordinary course of business by total equity.

@ Debt to equity ratio is derived by dividing net debt by total equity. Net
debt is defined to include all borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group carries on business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and
the US. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk principally
in Renminbi which can be largely offset by its revenue and
expenditure in the PRC. The Group does not expect any
appreciation or depreciation of the Hong Kong Dollar against
Renminbi which could materially affect the Group's results on
operations, and therefore no hedging instrument has been
employed. The Group will closely monitor the trend of the
Renminbi and take appropriate measures to deal with the foreign
exchange exposure if necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W

2

TREASURY POLICY AND MARKET RISKS

The Group has a treasury policy that aims to better control its
treasury operations and lower borrowing cost. Such treasury
policy requires the Group to maintain an adequate level of cash
and cash equivalents, and sufficient available banking facilities to
finance the Group's daily operations and to address short term
funding needs. The Group reviews and evaluates its treasury
policy from time to time to ensure its adequacy and effectiveness.

PROSPECTS

All of the Group's current production facilities are located in the
PRC. To meet the increasing demand for US made products, the
Group has original equipment manufacturing purchases from the
US manufacturers of approximately HK$237.7 million during the
Reporting Period. In the longer run and as announced on 11
November 2015, the Group is setting up a new manufacturing
facility in the US, which will use state-of-art technology and will
have greater automation than current facilities in the PRC. The
total investment of the new facility is estimated to be
approximately US$28.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$217.0 million) and this new facility is expected to commence
trial production in mid-2016 and put into full production in early
2017. With the set up of the new manufacturing facility, it is
expected that the Group will be able to provide US made
products to capture different market segments in the US and also
shorten the lead time between production and delivery and thus
better serves the customers in the US.

During the Reporting Period, the Group invested in Dormeo, a
company having a well-known brand in the US. Upon completion
of the investment, Dormeo became an associated company of
the Group. This strategic move marks a significant progress in
enriching Sinomax’s brand recognition and broadening the sales
networks in the memory foam market in North America. The
Group shared the post-acquisition loss of approximately HK$7.9
million during the Reporting Period. It is expected that the
financial results of this associated company will be improved in
the coming years.

“Dormeo” memory foam mattress

[Dormeo | 2B /B 43K 15
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The Group will continue to upgrade its machinery so as to
improve the production efficiency and to increase the Group's
competitiveness in the market. The Group will also put more
resources on research and development to develop more
innovative products and to enhance its product features.

The Group offers a wide range of health and household products
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau under its flagship brand
“SINOMAX". The Group will further enhance brand management
through various marketing activities to reinforce brand
recognition and to enhance the image of health, relaxation and
comfort of the "SINOMAX" brand. The Group plans to promote
its flagship brand “SINOMAX" in the US as well, focusing on the
middle to high-end retail markets.

During the Reporting Period, seventeen Life Stores were opened
in Hong Kong and in the PRC. The Group will continue to
promote its brands and products to corporate customers so as to
increase its corporate sales. The Group is also expanding
e-commerce sales channels to promote and distribute its
products. During the Reporting Report, e-commerce sales of the
Group recorded a substantial growth of approximately HK$8.7
million or 44.2% to approximately HK$28.4 million, as compared
to approximately HK$19.7 million for FY2014. The Group will
continue to expand more e-commerce sales channel to promote
its products and continue to develop more new products for
e-commerce in the coming years.

The Group plans to continue to achieve a grow in its business by
exploring attractive acquisitions and collaboration opportunities
that are compatible with its business vision. As announced on 19
February 2016, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire a
51% equity interest in Chengdu Xingang. Details of the acquisition
are set out in the paragraph headed "Events after the Reporting
Period” in this report.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 23 January 2015, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the “SLT
Acquisition Agreement”) with Mil-ton Company Limited (“Mil-
ton”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and wholly owned by a connected person of the Company, and
Chori Co., Ltd. (“Chori"), an independent third party incorporated
in Japan with limited liability whose shares are listed on the Tokyo
Stock Exchange, Inc.. Pursuant to the SLT Acquisition Agreement,
the Group conditionally agreed to acquire and Mil-ton and Chori
conditionally agreed to sell respectively 60% and 40% of the
equity interest in Shanghai Luen Tai, a company which is
established in the PRC with limited liability and principally
engages in the processing, manufacturing and sales of
polyurethane foam and products including mattress, sofa and
pillows in Shanghai. The cash consideration of the acquisition was
RMB21.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$26.5 million)
and RMB14.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$17.7
million), to Mil-ton and Chori, respectively. The acquisition was
completed on 1 April 2015.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately HK$1.0
million related to the above acquisition had been excluded from
the cost of acquisition and had been recognised as an expense in
the Reporting Period, included in “other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed under the
paragraph headed "Prospects”, the Group does not have other
plans for material investments or capital assets.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 19 February 2016, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Jiaming (“Mr. Liu”), an
independent third party. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement,
the Group conditionally agreed to acquire, and Mr. Liu
conditionally agreed to sell, 51% equity interest in Chengdu
Xingang. Chengdu Xingang is a company established in the PRC
with limited liability and is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of polyurethane foam, sales of decorative
materials, sofa materials, cloth materials and mattress materials in
Chengdu. The cash consideration of the acquisition was
approximately RMB81.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$97.3 million). The acquisition was completed on 1 March 2016.

EMPLOYEE

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of the Group’s
employees was 3,197 (as at 31 December 2014: 2,582) and the
total staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration and share
option expenses, amounted to approximately HK$275.1 million
for the Reporting Period (FY2014: approximately HK$264.1
million). The significant increase in staff costs was primarily due to
salary increment, increase in social insurance contributions and

housing provident fund.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company who held office during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LAM Chi Fan (&L 4 ), aged 57

Mr. Lam is a co-founder of the Group, the Chairman and an
executive Director. Mr. Lam is also the chairman of the Company’s
nomination committee and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee. Mr. Lam was appointed to the Board in
June 2012. Mr. Lam is responsible for formulation of the overall
business strategies and management of the Group and business
planning. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group
except Sinohome Household Products (Shenzhen) Limited* (B
RERMOFY)BBR A F]), Haining Sinomax Trading Co. Limited*
(BEEHFHAZHAERARQAF) (“Haining Sinomax"), Dongguan
Sinohome Limited* (RZ=E# X /E A M E R Q7)) ("“Dongguan
Sinohome"”) and Sinomax East Inc. (“Sinomax East”). Mr. Lam
has over 20 years’ experience in the polyurethane foam business.
Prior to founding the Group on 19 January 2000, he was a director
of Luen Tai Component Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and engaged in the sales of foam products, from
March 1991 to July 1996. He was appointed as a member of the
13th Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference Jiashan,
Zhejiang Province Committee (FEI A RBUA S @A L E 525
REFTZBELZEEHBZEZE) in February 2012, the executive vice
president of the Dongguan City Tang Xia Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment (R E BN E DR
EKEIYR) in January 2013, the vice president of the Shau Kei
Wan District of the Scout Association of Hong Kong (BAEE
EYHEEREZR)in August 2012 and in September 2013 and
an affiliated supervisor of the Huangpu Customs of the People’s
Republic of China (FEARKNEERHGENERITEEES)
in April 2014. Mr. Lam is the uncle of Mr. Cheung Tung, the
President and an executive Director; the father of Mr. Lam Sze
Chiu, a senior management member of the Group; and a cousin
of Ms. Lam Fei Man, an executive Director. He is also a director of
Sinomax Enterprises Limited (“Sinomax Enterprises”), the
Company's controlling Shareholder.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only
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Mr. CHEUNG Tung (R#R5E4), aged 40

Mr. Cheung is the President of the Company and an executive
Director. Mr. Cheung joined the Group on 21 July 2003 as the
Chairman’s assistant, responsible for handling the information
technology infrastructure of the Group. He was appointed to the
Board in June 2012. He is currently responsible for the overall
management and daily operations of the Group. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group except Haining
Sinomax, Dongguan Sinohome and Sinomax East. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Cheung assisted in setting up C&T Solutions
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in
providing information technology services, in March 2000. Mr.
Cheung holds a bachelor's degree in computer engineering from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and a
master’s degree in business administration jointly issued by
Northwestern University and the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Cheung was granted the “Young Industrialist
Award of Hong Kong 2014" by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries. Mr. Cheung is a nephew of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the
Chairman and an executive Director; a nephew of Ms. Lam Fei
Man, an executive Director; and a cousin of Mr. Lam Sze Chiu, a
senior management member of the Group. He is also a director
of Sinomax Enterprises, the Company’s controlling Shareholder.
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Mr. CHEN Feng (FR#.55 %), aged 52

Mr. Chen is an executive Director. He was appointed to the Board
in June 2012. He is responsible for the overall management of the
export sales business and product development of the Group. He
is also the key executive in mapping the sales and marketing
strategies in the US through Sinomax USA Inc. (“Sinomax USA").
He is currently a director of various wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Group, namely, Year Prosper Limited, Sinomax Health &
Household Products Limited (“Sinomax Health”), Fullelite
Limited, Wonderful Health Limited, Sinomax USA, Sinomax East,
Sinomax International Investment Limited and Sinomax (Zhejiang)
Polyurethane Household Products Limited* (E255 B8 (¥ ) B & B
RJE A mAR A7) (“Sinomax Zhejiang”). Mr. Chen joined the
Group on 19 January 2000 as an export sales manager and
became the vice president of the Group in 2007. He assisted in
setting up Sinomax USA, the company engaging in export sales
in the US, and has been the president and director of Sinomax
USA since its establishment in 2005. Mr. Chen holds a master of
science degree in industrial engineering from Louisiana State
University in Baton Rouge, US and a bachelor of engineering
degree in safety engineering from 1t &€ £F , now known as
Capital University of Economics and Business (B &4 EE 5 K &),
in Beijing, the PRC. Mr. Chen is a cousin of the mother of Ms. Lam
Fei Man, an executive Director. He is also a director of Sinomax
Enterprises, the Company’s controlling Shareholder.

Mr. LAM Kam Cheung (M 8% 5£ 4 ), aged 48

Mr. Lam is an executive Director, chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam joined the Group in
May 2004 as the financial controller and was appointed to the
Board in June 2012. He was appointed as the chief financial
officer in August 2013 and is responsible for the financial
management of the Group. Mr. Lam has over 20 years' experience
in accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he was an
executive director and company secretary of Yeebo (International
Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0259), a listed public company in
Hong Kong, from October 1995 to May 2004. Mr. Lam holds a
bachelor’'s degree in business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

English translated name is for identification purpose only
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Ms. LAM Fei Man (##% /M H), aged 41

Ms. Lam is an executive Director. She is responsible for the
Group's purchasing operations. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group except Haining Sinomax, Dongguan
Sinohome, Sinomax USA, Sinomax East, Sinomax Zhejiang and
Shanghai Luen Tai. Ms. Lam joined the Group in January 2000
and served as the assistant administration manager of Sinomax
(Holding) Group Limited, a predecessor company of Sinomax
Enterprises, until January 2003. From June 2003 to January 2006
Ms. Lam worked as a merchandiser in Capital 88 Incorporation
Limited, a company engaged in general trading. Ms. Lam rejoined
the Group in February 2006 as purchasing manager. She was
appointed to the Board in June 2012. Ms. Lam has over 15 years'
experience in purchasing and logistics. She holds a bachelor’s
degree in commerce jointly issued by the University of Canberra
and the Hong Kong Baptist University. Ms. Lam is a cousin of Mr.
Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director; the daughter of a cousin of Mr. Chen Feng, an executive
Director; and aunt of Mr. Cheung Tung, the President and an
executive Director.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WONG Chi Keung (E&3# %4 ), aged 49

Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the audit committee and corporate governance
committee and a member of the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong was appointed to the Board on 4 March
2014. Mr. Wong is currently an executive director and the chief
financial officer of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (stock code:
3322), a listed public company in Hong Kong. He was previously
the chief financial officer of Besunyen Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 0926) from September 2011 to September 2013 and
China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3818) from May
2007 to April 2010, all of which are listed public companies in
Hong Kong. Between June 2002 and June 2006, Mr. Wong was a
senior finance manager of China Netcom Group Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited (a company previously listed in Hong Kong
(former stock code: 0906) which subsequently merged with China
Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 0762), a listed public
company in Hong Kong). Between July 1989 and December 1999,
Mr. Wong was employed by PricewaterhouseCoopers, an
international public accounting firm, in Hong Kong and was an
audit manager. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
master’'s degree in business administration from the Australian
Graduate School of Management, jointly issued by the University
of New South Wales and the University of Sydney. Mr. Wong is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Professor LAM Sing Kwong, Simon (#& £ #1%), aged 57

Professor Lam is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the
audit committee, the nomination committee and the corporate
governance committee of the Company. Professor Lam was
appointed to the Board on 4 March 2014. Professor Lam joined
the University of Hong Kong as full-time teaching staff in
September 1989 and is currently the Professor of Management at
the Faculty of Business and Economics at the University of Hong
Kong. He has published a number of academic papers and case
analysis on topics such as corporate strategies, organisation
development and operations management. Professor Lam is an
independent non-executive director of Overseas Chinese Town
(Asia) Holdings Limited (stock code: 3366), Beijing Enterprises
Clean Energy Group Limited (formerly known as Jin Cai Holdings
Limited,stock code: 1250), Chun Sing Engineering Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2277), King Force Security Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8315), Glory Flame Holdings Limited (stock code:
8059) and Kwan On Holdings Limited (stock code: 8305), all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Prior to joining
the University of Hong Kong, Professor Lam was a regional
support manager of Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce from
1987 to 1989. Professor Lam holds a doctorate degree in
commerce from the Australian National University.
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Mr. FAN Chun Wah, Andrew (SEEt# %4 ), aged 37

Mr. Fan is an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee, the corporate governance committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fan was
appointed to the Board on 4 March 2014. He is a managing
director of C.W. Fan & Co. Limited. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China
Investments Limited (stock code: 0298), LT Commercial Real
Estate Limited (formerly known as LT Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 0112), Fulum Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1443),
Culturecom Holdings Limited (stock code: 343), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882) and On
Real International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8245), all of which
are listed public companies in Hong Kong. In the last three years,
Mr. Fan had been an independent non-executive director of CIG
Yangtze Ports PLC (stock code: 8233) from February 2009 to
March 2014 and Milan Station Holdings Limited from March 2013
to July 2015 (stock code: 1150), all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Fan was appointed as the chairman
of the 23rd council of Hong Kong United Youth Association with
effect from 1 July 2015. He is also a committee member of the
10th and 11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Zhejiang Province Committee* (FEI A RBUAMIRI G HMNIE R
+ /8@ K& E+ — JEZ 8 g), the 4th and 5th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen Committee* (F1
ARBUGH AERFEMNERSERERIITZEEE) and the vice
chairman of Zhejiang Province United Young Association. Mr. Fan
holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration in
accounting and finance from the University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in laws from the University of London. Mr. Fan
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only
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ESENGHREEE

Mr. ZHANG HWO Jie (R#E 54 ), aged 53

Mr. Zhang is an independent non-executive Director, a member
of the audit committee and the corporate governance committee
of the Company. Mr. Zhang was appointed to the Board on 4
March 2014. Mr. Zhang is currently the chairman of EVA Precision
Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 838), a listed public
company in Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of
experience in marketing, strategic planning and corporate
management in manufacturing industry. Mr. Zhang was granted
with the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2008, and was bestowed
as an honorary fellow by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in 2014. He is currently a honorary chairman
of The Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers Association, a honorary
president of Hong Kong Mould and Product Technology
Association and an executive vice president of Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council.

Mr. WU Tak Lung (REFE L), aged 50

Mr. Wu is an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee and the corporate governance committee
of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed to the Board on 4 March
2014. Mr. Wu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Hong Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Wu had worked in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, an international accounting firm, for five years
and had worked in several companies in Hong Kong as head of
corporate finance and/or executive director. Mr. Wu had over 10
years' experience in the corporate finance field and held a Type 6
license (Advising on corporate finance) until 2012. Mr. Wu
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of
Aupu Group Holding Company Limited (stock code: 0477),
Beijing Media Corporation Limited (stock code: 1000), China
Machinery Engineering Corporation* (1 B # 1% 5% & T 12 A% 1
[ & 7)) (stock code: 1829), all are listed public companies in
Hong Kong, and First Tractor Company Limited (a company listed
in both Hong Kong, stock code: 0038, and Shanghai). In the past
three years, Mr. Wu served as an independent non-executive
director of Valuetronics Holdings Limited, a listed company in
Singapore. Mr. Wu holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist
University and a master’s degree in business administration jointly
issued by the University of Manchester and the University of
Wales.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. LAM Sze Chiu (ML %4 ), aged 33

Mr. Lam is the marketing director of the Group. He is responsible
for developing and communicating marketing strategies and
coordinating marketing functions of the Group. Mr. Lam joined
the Group in 2007 and has been working as the marketing
director of the Group since 2012. Mr. Lam holds a bachelor of arts
degree with honours from York University in Toronto, Canada. Mr.
Lam is the son of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the Board
and an executive Director, and a cousin of Mr. Cheung Tung, the
President and an executive Director.

Mr. QIAN Hong Xiang* (23t 5E 4 ), aged 52

Mr. Qian is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group, namely,
Trade Sincere Limited (“Trade Sincere”), Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang)
Foam Co. Limited (“Sinomax Kuka") and Haining Sinomax and a
general manager of Sinomax Kuka. He is responsible for
supervision of daily operation and management of Sinomax Kuka.
Mr. Qian joined the Group in 2000 and worked as a general
manager and chief of foam research. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Qian worked at Tung Ah (China Holdings) Limited, a company
engaged in the chemical and plastic business, as a factory
manager and researcher in foams from 1993 to 2000. Mr. Qian has
20 years' experience in foam production and research and has
participated in formulating more than five national standards. Mr.
Qian was a member of the Standardisation Administration of the
People’s Republic of China (4 XEELCEERZEE) until
April 2018 and an expert in foaming plastics of the China Plastics
Processing Industry Association (7 B #2 ¥} il T T 2 # &) with
tenure between November 2005 to September 2017. He was
presented the National Science & Technology Progress Award
(third class)* (#} 2 # fl7# 2 = & #2) by the China Light Industry
Council* (R BIE T #EtA =) in March 2008, the China Standards
Innovation Contribution Award* (4 BIfR*E8I%7 & Bl £8) jointly by
the General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and
Quarantine of the People’s Republic of China (1 ZE A R £ F1E B
REESEEBRBBIEER) and the Standardisation Administration
of the People’s Republic of China (FEIBIKIZE(LEREZEF) in
December 2009. He was also awarded Outstanding Worker of the
Plastic Industry in the PRC* (FF B #8 K} 17 % % # T {E &) by the
China Plastics Processing Industry Association (FFBI#8 &N T T %
#% &) in May 2009, and Good Citizen* (1 £ ¥7 J& &) between
2011 and 2012 in January 2013, Model Worker of Haining* (/&%8
m 4 B 8 &) between 2008 and 2012 in April 2013 and
Outstanding Entrepreneur of 2011* (20114F [E & & & % XK) in
March 2012 by the Jiaxing People’s Government (5 Hh A KK
FiF).

* English translated name is for identification purpose only
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Ms. YUE Wai Fun (5REZ5/MH), aged 41

Ms. Yue was appointed as a general manager of Sinomax Health
in June 2012. Ms. Yue is responsible for supervision of the daily
operation and management of Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue joined
the Group in 2004 and served as marketing manager and brand &
marketing manager prior to being appointed as the general
manager of Sinomax Health. Ms. Yue holds a bachelor of social
science degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. CHEN Xiao Hua* (BR/NE %4 ), aged 54

Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2013 and was appointed as a
general manager of Sinomax Zhejiang in October 2013. Mr. Chen
is responsible for supervision of the daily operation and
management of Sinomax Zhejiang. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Chen was a general manager of Sinomax Polyurethane (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd* (BB BB RE (L&) BRAF]), a company indirectly
controlled by Mr. Lam Chi Fan, Mr. Cheung Tung and Mr. Chen
Feng, the executive Directors, and Ms. Cheung Shui Ying, the
mother of Mr. Cheung Tung, and engaging in foam
manufacturing, from 2002 to 2013. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of
experience in foam production and research. Mr. Chen completed
a business administration course for company executives in
Zhejiang University* (/L X2 ) in November 2006.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 69 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per Share amounting to
approximately HK$26.3 million was paid to the Shareholders
during the Reporting Period. The Board recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per Share, amounting
to approximately HK$43.8 million to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 22
June 2016. The Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the
Directors recommendation by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM”") to be held on 10 June
2016, the final dividend will be paid on 5 July 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the Reporting Period
are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable and
other donations amounting to approximately HK$1.1 million.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Directors consider that the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution to Shareholders comprise the share premium and the
accumulated profits which amounted to approximately HK$459.0
million as at 31 December 2015 (as at 31 December 2014:
approximately HK$274.2 million). Under the Companies Law
(Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of
the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
Shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum and
articles of association and provided that immediately following
the distribution of dividend the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

On 15 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
to place up to 100,000,000 new Shares to Sinomax Enterprises at
HK$1.06 per share. On 21 May 2015, 100,000,000 new Shares were
issued and allotted upon the placement. The net proceeds are to
be used to fund the Group's business expansion in the US and
general working capital.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this report were as follows and their biographical information is
set out in section headed "Directors and Senior Management” of
this report.

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Cheung Tung (President)
Mr. Chen Feng
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung
(Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
Ms. Lam Fei Man

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew

Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie

Mr. Wu Tak Lung
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In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
four Directors, namely, Ms. Lam Fei Man, Mr. Wong Chi Keung,
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon and Mr. Fan Chun Wah,
Andrew will retire at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS
LIABILITY INSURANCE

The articles of association of the Company provided that every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him/her as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether
civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his/her favour, or in
which he/she is quitted.

The Company has arranged approved Directors’ liability insurance
policy to protect the Directors against potential costs and liability
arising from claims brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS' SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a proposed service contract with the
Company or any member of the Group which is not terminable
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of this report, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or its subsidiaries or
holding company was a party and in which any Director or the
Director’s connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end or at any time during
the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates had any interests in any business
which competes or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly with the business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of all
Directors and senior management of the Group is formulated and
reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company, having
regards to the comparable market practice, competitive market
position, individual performance and the Group’s operating
results. Details of the remunerations of the Directors are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning in Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred
to therein; or (c) were required pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:
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Fei Man and Mr. Lam Kam Cheung, was granted share options to
subscribe for 6,650,000 Shares, 6,376,200 Shares, 3,050,000 Shares,
2,150,000 Shares and 2,000,000 Shares, respectively, under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, all of which are still outstanding, details of which
are disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” on pages
44 to 47 of this annual report.

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares BAREBERONEE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares and the issued Shares
underlying Shares as at
held under 31 December 2015
Name of Director Nature of interest equity derivatives (Note 1)
i
2015%12H31H
BERAR EETROBN
BARSTET AR BEBRS L
EEpHE EEMtE HERDHEER (PfFEE)
Mr. Lam Chi Fan Founder of a discretionary trust 1,069,738,000 61.13%
MENTTE (Note 2)
BB EERI LA (FTEE2)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) 6,650,000 0.38%
Em#EB A HEE3)
Mr. Cheung Tung Beneficial owner (Note 3) 6,376,200 0.36%
SRR A& EnHEA A M)
Mr. Chen Feng Beneficial owner (Note 3) 3,050,000 0.17%
BRAE S A& EnmEA A MEE3)
Ms. Lam Fei Man Beneficial owner (Note 3) 2,150,000 0.12%
MEESENA EmEa A (HFE3)
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung Beneficial owner (Note 3) 2,000,000 0.11%
MREBFE S A EmEB A MEE3)
Notes: Mz -
1. The calculation is based on the total number of 1,750,002,000 Shares in 1. FEERTBER20FN2ANBERETROAE A
issue as at 31 December 2015. 1,750,002,000 fi% °
2. These Shares belong to Sinomax Enterprises. Sinomax Enterprises is 2. EROMBESEBLERE - BHEBENM%¥5 B HChi Fan
legally and beneficially owned as to 50% by Chi Fan Holding Limited Holding Limited % Frankie {5 554 € & B # B 50% 1 7 &
and as to 50% by The Frankie Trust. The Frankie Trust is a discretionary 50% 1 %% ° Frankie S 55 9 ME LA M M BB RIE1E5E © #K
family trust established by Mr. Lam Chi Fan as settlor and Orangefield ENBIMERT A - il Orangefield Trustees (BVI) Limited
Trustees (BVI) Limited acting as the trustee. The beneficiaries of The BZEEA o Frankie ST B A BME NS ERERKERK
Frankie Trust are Mr. Lam Chi Fan and his family members. 8o
3. Each of Mr. Lam Chi Fan, Mr. Cheung Tung, Mr. Chen Feng, Ms. Lam 3, HITEEMNENLLE  RIFREAE - BIELAE - MES/NER

MR EEEREBEE X ARRERIERENZDRERT
B A% 4 LA 72 8 6,650,000 6,376,200 + 3,050,000 + 2,150,000
12,000,000 iR [& 17 + 2 EEITEIN » EFBERAFRE 44
47 EH [EIRERTE — SR -

BREEERAT 39
2015 FF#



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEHREE

Long positions in associated corporation — Sinomax HECEENTFE — BRELE
Enterprises
Approximate
Number percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest of shares shareholding
EEnA ERME R EE BMOREED L
Mr. Lam Chi Fan Beneficiary of The Frankie Trust 15 50%
MENTE Frankie SaEHIX %8 A
Mr .Cheung Tung Beneficiary of The Cheung's 5 16.67%
Family Trust
SRR ST A RRRGERNIZEA
Mr. Chen Feng Beneficiary of The Feng Chen'’s 5 16.67%
Family Trust
BR A8 5 4 BRI K IR E X Em A
DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES EERERONER

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time ~ HRRAFHBASHRBEIN

R ERREARRE - HE

during the Reporting Period, had any rights to acquire benefits by ~FERMEZTRFEZTAZEBHI8HEA T Z FLE T
means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures of the Company ~ #71 * MBEBAR QRN K EFMER - BEEIE
been granted to any Director or their respective spouse or TIREMZEFESN : MARE - EIERARSEMEL
children under 18 years old, or had any such rights been exercised ~ B IMEZ BEMZHE - BMEEFXFEEZAZLMBH18
by them; or was the Company, its holding company or its ~ BRA NZ FRAI A E AN BEBERS ZSHER

subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors,
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years old, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the person(s) (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336

of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

R EEFE

FERRZ2HER

R2015F12A31H  BEEAL(TBEARRESTH
HITES) RO IEEROPHEELENIRBEES X
HIEIEBIE 336 IEATEFE E M E MRS SRB T

Approximate
percentage of
the issued Shares

as at
31 December
Number 2015
Name Nature of interest of Shares (Note 1)
i
2015512 H31H
ERTRAOMLY
BEES L
HEREE ERME BHEE (PfFEE1)
Sinomax Enterprises (Note 2) Beneficial interest 1,069,738,000 61.13%
EEAPEE2) B
Chi Fan Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 1,069,738,000 61.13%
ZIEEEE R (Note 3)
(FF5E3)
Orangefield Trustees (BVI) Limited Trustee of various trusts 1,069,738,000 61.13%
(Note 4) (Hf7E4) ZEAEFETEMNZTA
Li Ching Hau Interest of spouse 1,076,388,000 61.51%
FRES [iRYEy (Note 5)
(FF5ES)
Notes: FI5E -

1. The calculation is based on the total number of 1,750,002,000 Shares in 1.

issue as at 31 December 2015.

2. Sinomax Enterprises is legally owned as to 50%, 16.67%, 16.67% and 2.
16.67% by Chi Fan Holding Limited, Wing Yiu Investments Limited, The
James’ Family Holding Limited and Venture Win Holdings Limited,
respectively, and beneficially owned in the same proportion by The
Frankie Trust, The Cheung's Family Trust, The James' Family Trust and
The Feng Chen'’s Family Trust, respectively.

AEERTRENR205F12A3MBERITRNDER A
1,750,002,000 % ©

B 55 BB 1 % 5 Bl B Chi Fan Holding Limited * Wing Yiu
Investments Limited * The James ' Family Holding Limited
JVenture Win Holdings Limited#H50% ~ 16.67% * 16.67%
K16.67%%EE Rz + W5 Bl Frankiefs5E - RERIEEFE
James RIEIEFE MR IEEFEHABR OB atEas o
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3, These Shares belong to Sinomax Enterprises, which is legally owned as
to 50% by Chi Fan Holding Limited.

4. Orangefield Trustees (BVI) Limited acts as the trustee of The Frankie
Trust, The James’ Family Trust, The Cheung'’s Family Trust and The
Feng Chen’s Family Trust. The beneficiaries of The Frankie Trust are Mr.
Lam Chi Fan and his family members. The beneficiaries of The Cheung's
Family Trust are Mr. Cheung Tung and his family members. The
beneficiaries of The James’ Family Trust are Ms. Cheung Shui Ying and
her family members. The beneficiaries of The Feng Chen’s Family Trust
are Mr. Chen Feng and his family members.

58 These interests belong to Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the spouse of Ms. Li Ching
Hau. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Ching Hau is deemed to be interested in
the same number of Shares which Mr. Lam Chi Fan is interested.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group had continuing
connected transactions with certain connected persons, details of
which have been disclosed in the Prospectus and the
announcements of the Company dated 6 February 2015 and 18
December 2015. Certain continuing connected transactions are
exempt from one or more of the reporting, announcement,
shareholders’ approval and annual review requirements for the
purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following are the continuing connected transactions of the
Group that are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements but otherwise exempt from the shareholders’
approval requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

(i) Lease agreements between Dongguan Sinohome and
Dongguan Donglian Furniture Co., Ltd.* (REREHRESR
R A ®l) ("Dongguan Donglian”)

Dongguan Donglian is indirectly wholly-owned by Sinomax
Enterprises, the controlling Shareholder. Dongguan
Donglian is therefore an associate of Sinomax Enterprises
and a connected person of the Company.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only
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On 2 December 2013, Dongguan Sinohome, as tenant,
entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement of
Dongguan Sinohome”) with Dongguan Donglian, as
landlord, for the lease of No. 1 Dajieling Road, Shahu
Village, Tang Xia Town, Dongguan, Guangdong Province,
PRC (“Dongguan Premises”) for a term of slightly more
than two years at a monthly rental of approximately
RMB695,000.

On 18 December 2015, Dongguan Sinohome entered into a
renewal lease agreement (the “"Renewal Dongguan Lease
Agreement”) with Dongguan Donglian for the lease of
Dongguan Premises for a term of three years at a monthly
rental of approximately RMB1.3 million after the expiry of
the Lease Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome.

Details of the terms of the Lease Agreement of Dongguan
Sinohome and the Renewal Dongguan Lease Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were set out
in the Prospectus and the announcement of the Company
dated 18 December 2015, respectively.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of
the annual maximum aggregate value for such continuing
connected transactions under the Lease Agreement of
Dongguan Sinohome and the Renewal Dongguan Lease
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2015 and each
of the three years ended 31 December 2018 were RMB8.5
million and approximately RMB15.7 million, respectively.
The total amount of rent paid pursuant to the Lease
Agreement of Dongguan Sinohome for the year ended 31
December 2015 was approximately RMB8.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$10.3 million).

M2013F12HA28  REEHREA@UEAEBAAN)
HEREEZRE (EAXE) BT RERE REEED
N AREER 1R REMEDICHERZ ([ REE
EXEARAERE])  AHBREART - ARAHA
R 695,000 7T °

REEEAXERARHEEHZEME ' SinohomeR
2015F 12 A 18 At E R e MR E R R L H48
HEmz((EER=HEWHR])  HH=F §HHE:
BOARKIZEET -

REBwFEAnEEHELEERHEBHEGR
AR A T EUETHR ZNFED RSN BRERK

ARAFIHEA2015F 12 A 18 BHAE ¢

E=ZREHE2015F12A831HILFE RE E20184F
uﬂmaﬁ:ﬂ&ﬁﬂimﬁﬁgwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfm
ENEEREHE R R ERERERINEFERS
%ﬁﬁ%m%i&t@ SRIABARESSEE TROA
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(i)

*
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Lease agreement between Sinomax Kuka and Zhejiang
Puruimei Industry Co., Ltd.* (JIEREEEXERAF)
("Zhejiang Puruimei”)

Zhejiang Puruimei is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Qian
Hong Xiang, who is a director of the Group's subsidiaries
namely Trade Sincere, Sinomax Kuka and Haining Sinomax
and a substantial shareholder of Trade Sincere. Zhejiang
Puruimei is therefore an associate of Mr. Qian Hong Xiang
and a connected person of the Company.

On 2 December 2013, Sinomax Kuka, as tenant, entered
into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement of Sinomax
Kuka") with Zhejiang Puruimei, as landlord, for the lease of
No. 99, Qi Chao Road, Haining Agriculture Foreign
Integrated Development Area, Zhejiang, China for a two
years at a monthly rental of approximately RMB237,000.
Details of the terms of the Lease Agreement of Sinomax
Kuka and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
set out in the Prospectus.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of
the annual maximum aggregate value for such continuing
connected transactions is approximately RMB2.9 million.
The total amount of rent paid pursuant to the Lease
Agreement of Sinomax Kuka for the year ended 31
December 2015 was approximately RMB2.8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$3.5 million).

English translated name is for identification purpose only
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(iii)

Sale of foams by Dongguan Sinohome to Huizhou City
Huiyang Weijian Household Products Factory* (M &
BERREMmEMIR) ("Huiyang Weijian”)

Huiyang Weijian is indirectly held as to 100% by Ms. Cheung
Wan. Ms. Cheung Wan is the niece of Mr. Lam Chi Fan and
the cousin of Mr. Cheung Tung, the executive Directors.
Huiyang Weijian is therefore an associate of each of Mr.
Lam Chi Fan and Mr. Cheung Tung and a connected person
of the Company.

On 2 December 2013, Dongguan Sinochome entered into a
framework sale and purchase agreement (the “Weijian
Foam S&P Agreement”) with Huiyang Weijian, pursuant to
which the Group will sell and Huiyang Weijian will purchase
polyurethane foams for a term commencing from signing of
the Weijian Foam S&P Agreement to 31 December 2015.
The price, type, amount and specification of foams to be
purchased depend on the purchase orders to be issued by
Huiyang Weijian to Dongguan Sinohome from time to time,
provided that the price of polyurethane foams shall be at
terms no more favourable than that offered to other third-
party purchasers by the Group. Details of the terms of the
Weijian Foam S&P Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were set out in the Prospectus.

The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of
the annual maximum aggregate value for such continuing
connected transactions is RMB5.0 million. There was no
transaction under the Weijian Foam S&P Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

English translated name is for identification purpose only
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(iv)

*
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Sale of foams by Haining Sinomax to Gu Jia Household
Co., Limited* (BB XX E R 0 & R 2 7)) (“Gu Jia
Household"”) and Zhejiang Gu Jia Meilin Household Co.,
Limited* (W IEREMREFR D F) (“Gu Jia Melin”)

Gu Jia Household holds 40% equity interest in Sinomax
Kuka, which is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. As a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, Gu Jia Household is a connected person
of the Company. Gu Jia Meilin, being the direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Gu Jia Household, is an associate of Gu
Jia Household and hence a connected person of the
Company.

On 6 February 2015, Haining Sinomax entered into a
procurement agreement (the “2015 Procurement
Agreement”) with Gu Jia Household and Gu Jia Melin,
pursuant to which the Group will sell and Gu Jia Household
and Gu Jia Melin will purchase polyurethane foams for a
term commencing from 1 January 2015 to 31 December
2015. The price, type, amount and specification of
polyurethane foams to be purchased depend on the
purchase orders issued by Gu Jia Household and Gu Jia
Melin to Haining Sinomax from time to time, provided that
the price of polyurethane foams shall be with reference to
market price.

On 18 December 2015, Haining Sinomax entered into a new
procurement agreement (the “Renewal Procurement
Agreement”) with Gu Jia Household and Gu Jia Melin to
govern the sale and purchase of polyurethane foams
between Haining Sinomax and Gu Jia Household and Gu
Jia Melin after the expiry of the 2015 Procurement
Agreement.

Details of the terms of the 2015 Procurement Agreement
and the Renewal Procurement Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 6 February 2015 and
18 December 2015, respectively.

English translated name is for identification purpose only
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The annual caps determined by the Directors in respect of
the annual maximum aggregate value for such continuing
connected transactions under the 2015 Procurement
Agreement and the Renewal Procurement Agreement for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and ended 31
December 2016 were RMB154.0 million respectively. The
total amount of sales to Gu Jia Household and Gu Jia Melin
pursuant to the 2015 Procurement Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was approximately RMB%4.7
million (equivalent to approximately HK$116.9 million).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2015
and confirmed that the transactions had been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

(b)  onnormal commercial terms; and

() in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions Under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued the unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.
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A copy of the auditor’s letter had been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
all the connected and continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
all the above continuing connected transactions was entered into
in the manners stated above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by
the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. Other than those
transactions disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, these related party transactions
either did not constitute connected transaction/continuing
connected transactions or constituted connected transaction/
continuing connected transactions that were exempted from all
disclosure and independent Shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and an analysis of the
Group financial performance during the Reporting Period using
financial key performance indicators can be found in the
"Financial Highlights” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” sections on page 6 and pages 9 to 16 of this annual
report, respectively.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only
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Environmental Policy and Performance

In conducting the business, the Group’s objective is to minimize
the adverse effects of its operations on the environment. In
addition, in order to comply with the applicable environmental
protection laws, the Group has established an environmental
management system in its operations in accordance with ISO
14001:2004 international standards and obtained ISO 14001
certification. The environmental management system will be
reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. The Group has complied with a number of
PRC environmental protection laws in connection with water
pollutants, air pollutants, solid waste pollutants, as well as noise
pollution generated from its manufacturing operations. During
the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with the
applicable PRC laws and regulations on environmental laws and
was not subject to any fines or legal action resulting from
incidents of non-compliance with any applicable PRC
environmental regulations, nor was there any threatened or
pending action by any PRC environmental regulatory authority.

Other green initiatives and measures have been adopted by the
Group to control the use of energy and resources in the
production, business operation and management activities so as
to achieve economic benefit. Such initiatives include reducing
manufacturing wastes by using scrap foams to produce pillows
and mattresses, reducing electricity consumption by using the
LED lightings and by using the diesel hot water system operated
by solar energy, recycling of used papers, creating a paperless
work environment and promoting water saving practices.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the Reporting Period, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.
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Relationship with Employees, Suppliers, Customers, and other
Stakeholders

The Group’s long term success depends on its employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders. The Group
recognizes the importance of its employees, it offers competitive
remuneration packages commensurate with industry practice and
provides various fringe benefits to employees including housing
and travel allowances depending on their grade and ranking
within the Group. The Group also maintains medical insurance for
the benefit of its employees. The Group conducts induction
training for all of its new employees and on-going training from
time to time during their employment. The nature of training
offered depends on their specific field of operation. The Group
has adopted a share option scheme and also operates an
employee incentive scheme pursuant to which rewards take the
form of promotions, salary raises and monetary bonuses.

The Group strives to maintain and enhance the relationship with
its customers and to maintain a fair and co-operating relationship
with its suppliers. The Group also takes an active role to take part
in the communities where it operates.

Principal risks and uncertainties
(1) Risk of customer concentration

Sales to the Group's top five customers accounted for
approximately 43.3% of the Group's total revenue, with one
customer in the Group’s export sales segment accounted
for approximately 26.3% of the Group's total revenue.

The Group does not enter into any long-term agreements
with these top five customers. Their purchases are on an
order-by-order basis. The Group cannot assure that it will
be able to maintain stable relationships with its key
customers. A substantial decrease of purchases could
adversely affect product sales, financial condition and
results of operations of the Group.

The Group will continue to diversify the customer’s portfolio
by actively searching for new customers and seeking for
strategic acquisition in order to capture more customers in
different markets.
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(2)

(3

(4)

Risk of changing in the economic conditions

It is anticipating that there will be a downturn in the
economy of the PRC and in Hong Kong in the coming year.
During the Reporting Period, approximately 58.9% of the
Group's total revenue was generated from sales in the PRC
and Hong Kong. The decline in the PRC and Hong Kong
economy may dampen the demand for the Group's
products which could have a material adverse effect on the
Group's business, results of operations and financial
condition.

To manage the risk of economic downturn in a particular
region, the Group is trying to diversify its investment
geographically. In particular, the Group invested in new
production facilities and invested in Dormeo, a company
having a well-known brand in the US. The management of
the Group expects the total revenue from the US will
increase in the coming years.

Risk of deterioration in the value of the Group brands

The Group is dependent on the goodwill in its brands for
the continued success and growth of its business. In
particular, the Group relies on sales of its “Sinomax”
branded products in Hong Kong and in the PRC, and
products under other brands owned by or licensed to it in
other territories. Adverse publicity or regulatory or legal
action against the Group could damage the reputation, the
brand images and reduce long-term demand for the
Group's products.

The Group continues its strategy to promote its brand
names through different marketing schemes. The Group
also uses multi brands strategy to promote more brands like
"Zeopedic”, "Dream Serenity”, "ComforZen”,
"Customizer”, "Spa Supreme” and “"Tung Ah” so as to
reduce the risk and deterioration in a particular brand.

Risk of volatility in the pricing of raw materials

The Group is exposed to commodity price risks resulting
from fluctuation of prices of chemicals including
polypropylene glycol and toluene diisocyanate, the principal
raw materials for the production of polyurethane foams. The
Group has not entered into any long-term agreement with
any of its raw materials suppliers, nor has it entered into any
hedging arrangements or transactions to reduce our
exposure to fluctuations in raw materials costs.
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(4)
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The Group implements a cost-plus pricing policy in the
segments of export sales and polyurethane foam sales.
Price quotations for orders are negotiated in an order-by-
order basis. In determining the product prices, the Group
usually takes into account of various factors such as
production costs (including costs of the raw materials),
production cycle, transportation costs, product types and
specification, market price and global economic conditions.

PROSPECTS

A description of the likely future development in the Group's
business is provided in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The particulars of important events affecting the Company that
have occurred since the end of the Reporting Period are set out
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 9
to 16 of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(i)  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 13 December 2013, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
which complies with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules was adopted by the Shareholders.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions that the eligible participants under the
scheme have or may have made to the Company.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the
opinion of the Directors, will contribute or have contributed
to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 13 December 2013, the Company has authorised to
grant to 140 eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of 34,918,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. In February 2014, the Company granted
share options to 137 eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of 34,903,000 Shares.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall be a price representing 30% discount to the
Offer Price (as defined in the Prospectus).

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall be vested equally in five
tranches commencing on the Listing Date and on each of
the first, second, third and fourth anniversary of the Listing
Date. The grantees to whom a share option has been
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be
entitled to exercise the share option any time after the share
option has been vested but in any event on or before the
date falling on the fifth anniversary of the Listing Date. The
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not
exercised within the exercise period will lapse and cease to
be of further effect.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme expired on 10 July 2014
and ceased to have effect after 10 July 2014. Share options
granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.
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The following tables disclose details of movements of share

TREBRIEERAFRE SR BAEBIR L A EARE

options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme: HH)FEIS ¢
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise price  Outstandingat  Lapsed during Exercised during ~ Outstanding at
Grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share 1Jan 2015 the year theyear  31Dec2015
R2015F R2015%
1818 12A318
ERA RHAH SEA i BROREE MATE  RMEARR REROR MR
HKS
T
Mr. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman) 10 Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2014 10 Jul 2014 —10Jul 2019 0.74 1,330,000 - - 1,330,000
WENLE(EER) NUE2RI08  014F2A108—2014E7A108  014ETA108 201957 A108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 —10Jul 2015 10Jul 2015—10 Jul 2019 074 1,330,000 - - 1,330,000
NWELR108  0UE2A108 2015574108 201557 B10A 201947 A108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2016 10Jul 2016 — 10 Jul 2019 0.74 1,330,000 - - 1,330,000
NWER108  04F28108— 2016577108 201657 R108 —2019%7 A 10
10Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 — 10Jul 2017 10Jul 2017 =10 Jul 2019 074 1,330,000 - - 1,330,000
NUELRI08  0F2R10B—017457A108  017E7A108 —201957A108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 —10Jul 2018 10Jul 2018 —10Jul 2019 074 1,330,000 - - 1,330,000
NWELR10B 0MUF2A108 2018574108 201857 A10A —201947 A108
Mr. Cheung Tung 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2014 10Jul 2014 —10 Jul 2019 074 1215240 - - 1,275,240
(President) NWEIR10B  04E2R108—201457 108 2014ETR108 —2019%7 A 10
FREE(857) 10Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2015 10Jul 2015— 10 Jul 2019 0.74 1215240 - - 1,275,240
NWUE2R108 0428108 —201557A108  201557A108 201957 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 —10 Jul 2016 10Jul 2016— 10 Jul 2019 0.74 1215240 - - 1,275,240
NWER108  014F2R108— 2016578108 201657 R108 —2019%7 A10R
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2017 10Jul 2017 — 10 Jul 2019 074 1215240 - - 1,275,240
NWEIR0B  04E2R10B 2017574108 20757R108 —2019%7 A 10
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2018 10 Jul 2018 — 10 Jul 2019 0.74 1215240 - - 1,275,240
NWUE2R108 004528108 —201857A108 201857 A108 —201957 A 10
Mr. Chen Feng 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2014 10Jul 2014 — 10 Jul 2019 0.74 610,000 - - 610,000
(Executive Director) NWER108 04F28108—2014%7 108 2014E7R108 —2019%7 A 108
RAtE#H2E) 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2015 10Jul 2015—10 Jul 2019 074 610,000 - - 610,000
NUE2R108  04E2810B—2015578108 201557 A108 —2019%7 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2016 10Jul 2016 —10 Jul 2019 074 610,000 - - 610,000
N14E28108 014E2A108—01657A108 201657108 2019574108
10Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2017 10Jul 2017 — 10 Jul 2019 0.74 610,000 - - 610,000
NWER108  04E2R108—2017%7A108  20757R108 —2019%7 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 —10Jul 2018 10.Jul 2018 — 10 Jul 2019 074 610,000 - - 610,000
NUE2R108 0042810 —201857A108 201857 A108 —2019%7 A 10
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Number of share options
RREYR
Exercise price  Outstandingat ~ Lapsed during Exercised during ~ Outstanding at
Grantee Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share 1Jan 2015 the year theyear 31 Dec 2015
R2015% R2015%
1818 12A318
ERA RHAH b L s SRTEE HAGE  RMERKN RERTE MRE
HK$
A7
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2014 10Jul 2014 —10 Jul 2019 0.74 400,000 - - 400,000
(Executive Director) N4EIR108  04F2R108—014ETA108  014FTA108-2019%7 A108
WEEEE(H7EE)  10Fb 201 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2015 10Jul 2015— 10 Jul 2019 074 400,000 - - 400,000
NUE2R108  0WE2R10B—201587A108 201557 A108 —2019%7 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 —10Jul 2016 10Jul 2016 —10Jul 2019 074 400,000 - - 400000
NWUER108 014528108 —2016%78108 201657 R108 —2019%7 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2017 10Jul 2017 —10 Jul 2019 074 400,000 - - 400,000
NWEIR108  04F2R108—2017%7A108  200757R108 —2019%7 A 10R
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2018 10Jul 2018 —10Jul 2019 074 400,000 - - 400,000
NUE2R108  0W4E2R10B—201857A108 201857 A108 —2019%7 A 108
Ms. Lam Fei Man 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 —10 Jul 2014 10Jul 2014 —10 Jul 2019 0.74 430000 - - 430,000
(Executive Director) NUEIR108  VUF2R108—0UETA08  0UETA10B—2019%7 5108
WEZE(FH7EZ) 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 —10Jul 2015 10Jul 2015—10 Jul 2019 074 430,000 - - 430,000
NWEIR08  04E2R108—201557A108 201557 A10A—201967 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2016 10Jul 2016 —10 Jul 2019 074 430,000 - - 430,000
NUELRI08 028108 —201657A108 2016574108 —201957F108
10Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2017 10Jul 2017 —10 Jul 2019 0.74 430000 - - 430,000
NUE2R108  NUF2R0R—NTETA0E  07FTR08 201957 A10R
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014—10Jul 2018 10Jul 2018 — 10 Jul 2019 074 430,000 - - 430000
NWEIR08  014E28108—201857A108 201857 A10A—201967 A 108
Other employees 10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 —10 Jul 2014 10Jul 2014 —10 Jul 2019 0.74 2,847,360 (123,000) - 2,711,360
AR NUE2R10R NUFIRB—NUEFTAI0E 201457 F108 —2019%7 A10R
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2015 10Jul 2015—10 Jul 2019 074 2,849,360 (123,000) - 2,713,360
NWEIR08  04E28108—201557R108 201557 A10A —201967 A 108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2016 10.Jul 2016 — 10 Jul 2019 074 284930 (123,000) - 2713360
NUE2RI08 0WE2R108—201657A108  2016E7A108 —201957A108
10Feb 2014 10 Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2017 10Jul 2017 —10 Jul 2019 0.74 2,849,360 (123,000) - 2713360
DUE2R10R NUE2RN0B—-20TFTRI0R 20757 F10R —2019%7 A108
10Feb 2014 10Feb 2014 — 10 Jul 2018 10Jul 2018 — 10 Jul 2019 074 2,849,360 (123,000) - 2713360
NWEIR108  04F2R108—2018%7 108 201857 R108 —2019%7 A 10
34,471,000 (615,000) - 33,856,000
Number of share options exercisable at 31 December 2015 13,541,200

R20155 128 31 AT REREHA

Notes:

Wi

(a) 10 eligible participants (FY2014: 16), who have been granted share (a)
options have ceased to become eligible participants upon termination
of employment during the Reporting Period and the said share options

have automatically lapsed.

(b) Other details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note (b)
28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(i) The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 4 March 2014, the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was
conditionally adopted by the Shareholders. Details of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The articles of association of the Company and the Companies
Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands do not entitle any
Shareholder to any pre-emptive right or other similar rights to
subscribe for the Shares.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Equity-Link
Agreements”, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any Shares during the Reporting
Period.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of
the controlling Shareholders, namely, Sinomax Enterprises, Mr.
Lam Chi Fan, Mr. Cheung Tung, Mr. Chen Feng and Ms. Cheung
Shui Ying, in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
deed of non-competition as set out in the Prospectus for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors (the “INED"”) an annual confirmation of his
independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, the aggregate purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 31.4% of the
Group's total purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted
for approximately 8.6% of the Group's total purchases.

During the Reporting Period, the aggregate sales to the Group's
five largest customers was approximately 43.3% of the Group's
total revenue. The Group's largest customer accounted for
approximately 26.3% of the Group's total revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the issued Shares) had a beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If any Shareholders has any doubt about the taxation implication
of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
own professional advisers.

AUDITOR

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants, who will retire and offer itself for re-appointment at
the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be submitted to the AGM
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Reporting
Period have been reviewed by the audit committee of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the "Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 51 to 66 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of
public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted
under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times during
the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Lam Chi Fan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of its
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Board believes that good corporate governance provides a
framework that is essential for effective management and healthy
corporate culture, thereby earning the confidence of the
Shareholders and the public.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as it own code of corporate
governance. The Company had met the applicable code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the Reporting Period.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company's
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the
CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for the Directors
and relevant employees, who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company, in their dealings in the Company’s
securities. The code of conduct are on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they had fully complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises ten Directors, with five executive
Directors and five INEDs. The Directors’ biographical details are
set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on
pages 17 to 26 of this annual report and are posted on the
Company's website at www.sinomax.com/group, The Directors
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report
were as follows:

Executive Directors Mr. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Tung (President)

Mr. Chen Feng

Mr. Lam Kam Cheung (Chief Financial
Officer & Company Secretary)

Ms. Lam Fei Man

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew

Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie

Mr. Wu Tak Lung

Independent non-
executive Directors

Every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years pursuant to the Cayman Island laws and the CG
Code.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 17 to 26 of
this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business, family or
other material relationships among members of the Board.
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The structure, size and composition of the Board will be reviewed
from time to time by the nomination committee of the Company
to ensure the Board has a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the Company’s business. The independence of
the INEDs is assessed according to the relevant rules and
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company requests the
Directors to disclose annually to the Company the number and
nature of office held in public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments with an indication of time involved.

Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible and has general power for the
management and conduct of the business of the Group. It
delegates day-to-day management and operations functions of
the Company to the executive committee and senior
management of the Company with clear directions and authority
framework set by the Board. The Board will review periodically
the delegation given to management to ensure that they are
appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Group as a
whole.

The Board has delegated specific roles and responsibilities to the
Company’s audit committee, corporate governance committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. Further
details of these committees are set out on pages 56 to 62 of this
report.

Chairman and President

Mr. Lam Chi Fan is the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Lam is
responsible for the formulation of the overall business strategies
and business planning of the Group.

Mr. Cheung Tung is the President (equivalent to the role of a chief
executive) of the Company. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
overall management of the day-to-day operations of the Group.

Mr. Lam Chi Fan is the uncle of Mr. Cheung Tung. However, there
is a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility and
the President’s responsibility.
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Independent non-executive Directors

The Company currently has five INEDs, and at least one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from all INEDs their confirmation of
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all INEDs met the independence guidelines and are independent.
These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified
range of expertise and serve the crucial function of providing
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of
Shareholders and the Group as a whole.

Board meetings

The Board meets at least four times a year and a tentative
schedule for regular Board meetings for each year is provided to
Directors prior to the beginning of each calendar year. Between
scheduled regular Board meetings, Directors may approve
various matters by way of passing written resolutions. Additional
Board meetings may be arranged if required. In addition, at least
14 days' notice of a regular Board meeting shall be given and the
Company aims at sending the agenda and the accompanying
board papers to Directors at a reasonable time before the
intended date of a Board meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board held four meetings to
consider and approve the audited annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2014, unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2015 and continuing connected
transactions. At these Board meetings, the Board also reviewed
and discussed the business updates and development of the
Group.

The Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the
Company and are open for inspection by the Directors .
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The attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings BEHFEREHEITNESTSSHDEHINWOT -

held during the Reporting Period are set out as follows:
Name of Directors Meetings attended
EEHE HESZRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Chi Fan MEN LS 4/4
Mr. Cheung Tung RIERAAE 4/4
Mr. Chen Feng ReR 8 ot A 4/4
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MREPEESE A4 4/4
Ms. Lam Fei Man MR/ NMA 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FEREE 4/4
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon MR IR 4/4
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew BREESYE 4/4
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie SREES A 4/4
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RiEBELAE a/4

Accountability and Audit EXEREF

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 to ensure that the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the Group's financial position on a going-concern
basis and other financial disclosures. Board members are
provided with monthly updates on the Group's financial position,
which give the Directors a clear assessment of the performance,
position and prospect of the Group. A statement from the
external auditor relating to their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 67 to 68.

Training and support for Directors

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities and
are committed to participating in continuous professional
development to develop their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

The Company provides regular updates on changes and
developments relating to the Group's business and the legislative
and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board
meetings. In addition, the Company also organises briefing
sessions to the Directors which place emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director, as well as the
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements.
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The training records of the Directors during the Reporting Period
are set out as follows:

RmEME - EFZEIEEEINAT

Reading materials
regarding regulatory
updates and corporate

Attending
seminars and/or
conferences and/

Name of Director governance matters or briefings
EEHE FREEEHNR
TEREREEN HEAEER
B A Rt FEBERHER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Chi Fan MENTAE
Mr. Cheung Tung SRR A 4 v
Mr. Chen Feng BRE S & 4 4
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MERFE S A 4 v
Ms. Lam Fei Man MEZ/NA v/ 4
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTESE
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FE@EE v/ 4
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon RGBS 2% v/ v/
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew SBEEES A v/ v
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie SRR A& v/ 4
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RiEgELE 4 4
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZRY
The Company has set up four committees, namely, the audit ARAIRIABEEZES Eﬂ%$?§,\ E %ﬁ@ﬂi/\ = -
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and T}%%? SREEERLZET  UEBARTNEES

corporate governance committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company. The terms of reference of these
committees are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises five INEDs, namely Mr. Wong Chi
Keung, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr. Fan Chun Wah,
Andrew, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr. Wu Tak Lung. Mr. Wong,
who has professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management expertise, is the chairman of the audit committee.
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The primary duties of the audit committee include, among other
things:

- reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity;

- recommending to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor and approve its remuneration;

- reviewing the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
annual reports and interim reports before submitting them
to the Board;

- overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, internal
control and risk management procedures and audit process;

- reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group; and

- meeting with the external auditor to discuss issues
regarding audit at least once a year in the absence of the
management.

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee held four
meetings and reviewed the interim and annual results of the
Group and discussed and approved the relevant financial reports.
It also discussed matters related to internal controls and
appointment of external auditor.

A summary of work of the audit committee during the Reporting
Period is as follows:

(@) reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2014 and interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2015;

(b)  reviewed the internal control review plan and the internal
controls report of the Group prepared by the internal
control advisor;

(c)  approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year
ended 31 December 2015; and

(d) recommended the Board to approve the revised terms of
reference of the audit committee.
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The attendance record of each member of the audit committee
at the meetings held during the Reporting Period is set out as

BEZZEENENBERRNRIT 2 EENHFREH
BN

follows:

Name of members of audit committee ERZEEREHSR Meetings attended

HESERE
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FE®EE 4/4
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon R IR 4/4
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew BEEESE 4/4
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie SREESTEE 4/4
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RiBESE 4/4

There was no disagreement between the Board and the audit
committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee monitors the audit and non-audit services
rendered to the Group by the external auditor and ensures that
the engagement of external auditor in non-audit services will not
impair its audit independence or objectivity.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees in respect of the
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsuy, is set out as follows:

EXeEEZBEMENTE  ZT  BERERI
MZBMEEEEAERN K

BB ETB %

BZZ B SEERIMNIREE A RERINEZ NI
BRI  XHERZEIMNEZEEEIREZRE /&
BEEERBMERETERM -

REE2015F12A3NBILEFE Rz« Balfhe
ETRTTRASEEIREMEX R IEEZRE M HHER
T

Fee
A
HK$'000
FHT
Audit services FEIZIRTS 2,400
Non-audit services: FEBIZIRTS -
Reviewing the Company’s interim financial EZZ AN EFEE S ER
information, report on continuing connected SERAB R HMEREZAEER
transactions and review of internal control of NEBEEH - BB EWEESIE
the Group, and conducting financial and ELM G RRE T H s ZRES
tax due diligence for potential acquisition 1,495
3,895
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Corporate Governance Committee

The corporate governance committee comprises five INEDs,
namely, Mr. Wong Chi Keung, the chairman of the corporate
governance committee, Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, Mr.
Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie and Mr. Wu Tak
Lung.

The primary duties of the corporate governance committee
include, among other things:

- developing and reviewing the policies and practices of the
Company on corporate governance and making
recommendation to the Board with regard to any change;

- reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management on corporate governance;

- reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements on corporate governance and making
recommendation to the Board with regard to any change;

- developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and corporate governance manual applicable to employees
and Directors; and

- reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Reporting Period, the corporate governance
committee held one meeting to review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices and the compliance with the
CG Code.
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The attendance record of each member of the corporate &R EEARLZEENENREHRNRBITZNEERE

governance committee at the meeting held during the Reporting B & @#AHFE O8RS0 T ¢

Period is set out as follows:
Name of members of Meetings attended
corporate governance committee TEELREEENERS HESERE
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FERAeAst 11
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon WREER e 2% 11
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew BEEESE 11
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie RS AE 11
Mr. Wu Tak Lung REEEE 11

Remuneration Committee FHEES

The remuneration committee consists of one executive Director
and two INEDs. The remuneration committee is chaired by
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon, an INED. Other members are
Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew, an INED and Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the
Chairman of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include,
among other things:

- studying and making recommendations or proposals to the
Board for its review on the Company's policy and structure
for remuneration of all Directors and senior management,
on the Company’s incentive schemes and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating the remuneration policies and incentive
schemes;

- determining the remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management and making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors; and

- reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate objectives approved by the Board
from time to time.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration committee held
one meeting to review and approve the Directors’ and senior
management’s performance bonus, taking into consideration the
comparable market practice, competitive market position,
individual performance and contributions and the Company’s
operating results.
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In order to recognize and acknowledge the contributions of key
employees of the Company, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme. This incentive scheme enables the eligible
persons to have a personal stake in the Company and thus
motivate them to optimize their performance efficiency for the
benefit of the Company.

Details of the Directors’ emolument for the year ended 31
December 2015 and the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set
out in note 9 and note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

The attendance record of each member of the remuneration
committee at the meeting held during the Reporting Period is

set out as follows:

Name of members of

REERRBAARAEREENER - ARFHRMER
NFABERERETE - ZEB B LABERALR
ARBHEBEAES  EMXEEE/ARF NN m
RAATERE -

EAEZE2015F12831BIEFENEETHE MBI
M ERIIERIEE 2B D R HR GRS VB RRM T
9 K FfIFE28 ©

BEFHEREEKER R
YR RCER DI T

SHMARITZE

FMEZBEeeR

Meetings attended

remuneration committee FHESEREHSR HESERE

Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon R e 2% 1/1

Mr. Lam Chi Fan MENLESE 1/1

Mr. Fan Chun Wah, Andrew BRI A il
Nomination Committee RBREZES

The nomination committee comprises three members with the
majority of its members being INEDs. The nomination committee
is chaired by Mr. Lam Chi Fan, the Chairman of the Board. Other
members are Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Professor Lam Sing
Kwong, Simon, both being INEDs.

The primary duties of the nomination committee include, among
other things:

- reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of
the Board and making recommendations regarding any
proposed changes to the Board in line with the Company’s
strategies;

- developing and formulating relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of directors;

- identifying suitable candidates for appointment as directors;
and

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Director.
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During the Reporting Period, the nomination committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity among its Board members. The nomination committee
has a policy concerning the diversity of Board members with
measurable objectives. Selection of candidates is based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and
the legitimate interests of the principal Shareholders.

The attendance record of each member of the nomination

RBEH REZEEAF—ReZALBRTEFTSNR
B RRRAENX ARRERREFETEXNEZ T
M - REZBEREFTEUEZTIERAABEK
BIREEGR - (REANERDER —RINZ TG
A BRETRRMUR - Fik XEEBEER B
Tk BELR - KEE - AR REFHREIERRNA
AR

BEREZBEENENBERRNRIT 2 EEMNHFLEH

committee at the meeting held during the Reporting Period is set  %IJ2Z0F :

out as follows:
Name of members of Meetings attended
nomination committee REZEENEHE HEEERE
Mr. Lam Chi Fan MENLTE 1/
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FRE&REAE 11
Professor Lam Sing Kwong, Simon IR YL U 11

COMPANY SECRETARY REWE

Mr. Lam Kam Cheung was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 4 March 2014. The biographical details of Mr.
Lam is set out in the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on page 19 of this report.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Lam took no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company respects the rights of Shareholders and seeks to
facilitate the effective exercise of those rights by ensuring that the
Company communicates effectively with its Shareholders.

The Company promotes effective communication with
Shareholders and encourages effective participation by
Shareholders at general meetings of the Company. To ensure a
high quality of communication and level of clarity with all investors
and other stakeholders, whilst complying with its statutory
disclosure obligations, the Company endeavours to provide
Shareholders with ready and easy access on a timely basis to
matters that affect their investment in the Company;
communicate in a clear, accurate and easy to understand manner
with investors and other stakeholders. Communication with
Shareholders would be mainly through the Company’s interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars, general
meetings and disclosure on the Company’s website.

General Meetings

The Board also considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an useful forum for Shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. The Company shall in each year hold a general
meeting as its AGM. All general meetings other than AGM shall
be called extraordinary general meetings ("EGM").

Members of the audit committee, remuneration committee,
corporate governance committee and nomination committee and
the external auditors also attend the AGMs to answer questions
from Shareholders. Notice of AGM is sent to all Shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the AGM and the
accompanying circular also sets out details of each proposed
resolution and other relevant information as required under the
Listing Rules. The vote results are posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day of the AGM.
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The 2015 AGM was held on 11 June 2015 and an EGM was held
on 6 March 2015. The attendance records of the Directors at the
2015 AGM and other EGM held during the year are set out below:

2015 E R EIAE RNER2015F6 A 11 B 81T RIREE
BIARER2015F3 A6 HETT - IRERERNLEITHI 2015
FREBEFAS REMRRERIASHHEC SRS
T

AGM attended EGM attended

Ve o Bieaas EEpgE HERREFAE HERRBIAE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lam Chi Fan MERLE 1/1 11
Mr. Cheung Tung SRIREE (RRBAFAEK

(Chairman of the AGM and EGM) REREFIA T2 E)E) 11 1/1
Mr. Chen Feng PR AE 5 4 1”1 11
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung MRERFE S 1 11
Ms. Lam Fei Man MEESE/ME 1/1 11
Independent non-executive Directors BAKEHITES
Mr. Wong Chi Keung FEREE 11 11
Professor Lam Sing Kwong Simon RGBS 2% 1/1 1/1
Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew SEEEEESAE 11 1/1
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie SREGESEAE 1/1 0/1
Mr. Wu Tak Lung RERELA 11 11

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Any two or more members of the Company, at the date of the
deposit of a written requisition holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings, shall at all times have the right to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must specify the purpose of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionists and deposit it with the Company
Secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower 1,
MegaBox Enterprise Square Five, No. 38 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM to be held
within a further 21 days, the requisitionists themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the EGM, but any EGM shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition.

An EGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly possible, as that in which meetings
are to be convened by the Board.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions or requests for
information to the Directors or management through the ‘Contact
Us’ section in the Company’s website at www.sinomax.com or in
writing and sent by post to the Company'’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, no members nor Shareholders
are permitted to propose new resolutions at the general meetings
if the intention to propose the new resolutions is not specified in
the notice convening the general meeting. However, procedures
for proposing candidate(s) for election as Directors at a
Shareholder’s meeting are set out in the Corporate Governance
section of the Company’s website at ir.sinomax.com.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that communicating with its Shareholders,
investors and other stakeholders by electronic means, particularly
through its website, is an efficient way of distributing information
in a timely and convenient manner. The Company’s website at
www.sinomax.com/group provides the following information:

- the Board, committee charters, key corporate governance
policies and constitutional documents;

= latest news, announcements, financials including interim
and annual reports and all material information submitted

to the Stock Exchange;

- other information relating to the Group and its business.
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During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant
change in the Company'’s constitutional documents.

Shareholders can make any query in respect of the Group or to
make request for the Company'’s financial reports. The designated
contact details are as follows:

By post: Sinomax Group Limited

Units 2005-2007, Level 20, Tower 1,
MegaBox Enterprise Square Five

No. 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinomax.com

Shareholders who have any matters related to change of name or
address, transfer of shares and stolen or loss of share certificates,
please contact the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited. The contact details are as follows:

Address Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1333
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BRI SRS

Deloitte.
=Z)

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
REEEERAT
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinomax Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “"Group”) set out on pages 69 to
159, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ENHRE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meaEaRAtEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

BIE 201512 A 31 HIFF/E
2015 2014
20155 20145
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz TER FHT
Revenue I@N 5 2,869,846 2,683,408
Cost of sales SHERK R (2,082,370) (1,947,024
Gross profit S 787,476 736,384
Other income HigA 47,946 43,152
Other gains and losses Hithoas KB HE (11,229) (3673)
Selling and distribution costs $HE R ER AN (342,416) (331,756)
Administrative expenses THEYS (162,565) (155,519)
Share of loss of an associate el o 5t = 17 (7,924) -
Interest on bank borrowings PITERAE (7,9595) (8,779)
Other expenses Hihfx (58,894) (32,942)
Profit before taxation B AR T 8 244,439 246,867
Income tax expenses st s 11 (59,763) (43,920)
Profit for the year FEREF 184,676 202,947
Other comprehensive (expense) income that may B END RE RN
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss Hip2mE (Fx) WAKRE
Exchange differences arising on translation of INETE ) E R E
foreign operations (28,069) 571
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBANEE 156,607 203,518
Profit for the year attributable to: TIATEEFRRT
Owners of the Company V/NCIEZYEPN 172,674 194,393
Non-controlling interests IR E RS 12,002 8,554
184,676 202,947
Total comprehensive income for the year TIALEEFEAZERA
attributable to: G
Owners of the Company RAREA A 146,381 194,793
Non-controlling interests FEERR 10,226 8,725
156,607 203,518
Earnings per share BRAEF 13
— Basic —EA HK10.09 centsfll  HK12.37 cents fll
— Diluted —#g HK10.07 centsifl  HK12.35 cents %fll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a BRI R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
R2015F 12 A 31 H

2015 2014
20154 2014 5
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investment properties KEYE 14 28,676 22,274
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR E 15 211,904 221,392
Prepaid lease payments AN HEERIR 16 21,989 23,630
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, MWEYE « BERRELANES
plant and equipment 61,893 7,791
Interests in an associate R—EBE QR 2 17 71,569 -
Rental deposits Heke 18 19,764 18,482
Deferred tax assets FEERIRE E 19 19,937 18,230
435,732 311,799
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 20 298,707 398,050
Prepaid lease payments AN HE IR 16 580 607
Trade and other receivables 25 & EH M fE U R IE 21 613,406 584,740
Bills receivables i ES 22 22,485 10,422
Tax recoverable A] Y [B] B 8 17,841 6,426
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITFER 23 8,513 14,786
Fixed bank deposits THIR 1T 23 57,118 15,156
Structured bank deposits HERBIRITER 23 26,539 25,260
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 23 328,790 254,020
1,373,979 1,309,467
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 KR HAMER T8 24 367,557 275,730
Bills payables A2 25 59,493 92,335
Taxation payable FERFIE 115,184 97,060
Unsecured bank borrowings IR ITER 26 160,541 233,016
702,775 698,141
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 671,204 611,326
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAMSE
LIABILITIES 1,106,936 923,125
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAGE 19 10,247 10,012
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,096,689 913,113
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRFEE
Share capital [N 27 175,000 165,000
Reserves HE 883,352 711,320
Equity attributable to owners RNANBIHER AEERER
of the Company 1,058,352 876,320
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R 38,337 36,793
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,096,689 913,113

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 159 were  F &9 E 159 B FTE 47 A B TR R M 201663 A 18 H &
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of ANAREZSHERIRENE  THTIEEAERE
the Company on 18 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: Z

CHEUNG Tung &4 LAM Kam Cheung Hk 85
Director 2% Director 2%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERSER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

BIE 201512 A 31 HIFF/E
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
LG PN 4
Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory Capital Shareoption  Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests Total
L) Y R &% i EX e FER
s e fife fife B 1] fite il it Bi At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn T Thn Thn Thn T Thn Thn Thn T
(Note (i) (Note (i)~ (Note (i)
(Mo)  (Wam)  (eG)
At 1 January 2014 R0E1R1H 5 343,846 (403 835) 6,593 1510 - 1,39 550,823 54021 34,985 575,25
Profitfor the year ERET - - = = = = - 194,393 194,393 8,55 202947
Exchange differences arising on 2 E 8 FHELR
translation of foreign BAES
operations - - - - - - 400 - 400 m SN
Total comprehensive income ~ FR2ERAEE
for the year - - = = = - 400 194,393 194,793 8,725 203518
Dividend recognised as EREDRMRS
distribution (note 12 (¥3E12) - (150 - - - - - - (1650 6o (3417
Issue of shares (note 27(b) ER(G (B 27b) 15,000 144,000 = - - - - - 159,000 = 159,000
Cost of issuing new shares BTHROKA - (8,676) = - - - - - (8,676) = (8,676)
Capitalisation issue (note 27a)) - &2k %77 (M5 27(a)) 149.995 (149.995) = - - - - - - - =
Recognition of share based R (AR
payment expense - - - - - 7431 - - 7431 - 7431
Issue of shares upon exercise of {TFERELTZRN
share options = 2 - - - (1) - - 1 = 1
Transfers i = - - 1921 - - - (1.921) . = =
At 31 December 2014 RAWE12A318 165,000 312677 (403,835) 8,514 1510 7430 a9 743,295 876,320 36793 913113
Profitfor the year ERGT = - - - - - - 172,674 172,674 12,002 184,676
Exchange differences arising on E B FHEER
translation of foreign EiEE
operations - - - - - - (26,293) - (26,293) (1,776) (28,069)
Total comprehensive (expense) ERZE (F%) WALE
income for the year - - - - - - (26,293) 172,674 146,381 10,226 156,607
Dividend recognised as RENRNRE
distribution (note 12) (3E12) = - - - - - - (70,000) (70,000) (8,682) (78,682)
Issue of shares (note 271c) ARG (e 210) 10,000 96,000 = = = = = = 106,000 = 106,000
Costofissuingnewshares ~ Z{THR(AAA - (4,157) - = = = - = (4,157) > 4157)
Recognition of share based ~ BBRAMFFHR
payment expense - - - - - 3,808 - - 3,808 - 3,808
Transfers &2 = = = 1,858 = = = (1,858) = = =
At 31 December 2015 R15E128318 175,000 404,520 (403,835) 10,372 1,510 11,238 15436 844111 1,058,352 38337 1,096,689
BESEEFRALR 71
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZEZ2015F 12831 HiLFZE

Notes:

(iii)

72

The merger reserve represented the difference between the total equity
of those subsidiaries which were transferred from the shareholders of
Sinomax Enterprises Limited, the immediate holding company of the
Company (“Individual Shareholders”) to Treasure Range Holdings
Limited (“Treasure Range”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, attributable to the owners of the Company and the
aggregated share capital of the relevant subsidiaries pursuant to the
group reorganisation where the transfer of the relevant subsidiaries to
Treasure Range as satisfied by issue of new shares from Treasure Range
to the Company and from the Company to Sinomax Enterprises, the
immediate holding company of the Company.

According to the relevant requirements in the memorandum of
association of the Company'’s PRC subsidiaries, a portion of their profits
after taxation has to be transferred to the statutory reserve. The transfer
had been made before the distribution of a dividend to equity owners.
The reserve can be applied either to set off accumulated losses, if any,
or to increase capital. The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable
other than upon liquidation.

In accordance with the provisions of the Macao Commercial Code, the
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Macau is required to transfer
a minimum of 25% of annual net profit to statutory reserve until the
accumulated amount equals half of its quota capital. This reserve is not
distributable to the shareholder.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Individual Shareholders
acquired an additional 34% interest in Trade Sincere Limited (“Trade
Sincere”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, from a non-
controlling shareholder for a consideration of US$998,012 (equivalent to
HK$7,755,000) and the Group's interest in Trade Sincere was then
increased from 51% to 85%. Simultaneously, Trade Sincere disposed of
its 40% equity interest in Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co. Limited
(“Sinomax Kuka"), a then wholly-owned subsidiary of Trade Sincere to
a non-controlling shareholder for a consideration of US$1,174,132
(equivalent to HK$8,855,000). Sinomax Kuka became a 60% owned
subsidiary of Trade Sincere after this partial disposal. The Group's
effective interest in Sinomax Kuka remained unchanged. The difference
between the consideration received by the Group and the increase in
non-controlling interests after these transactions amounting to
approximately HK$1,515,000 is recorded in capital reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

EIZ 201512 31 HIEFE
2015 2014
20155 20144
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
Lz THET FHAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before taxation B A5 A1 g A 244,439 246,867
Adjustments for: RTEIRIEAE
Net allowance for doubtful debts REFBME F58 9,809 322
Reversal of allowance for inventories FEEEED (1,071) (5,120)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEfH & FRIAEE 35 592 603
Depreciation of investment properties KREMEFE 1,564 905
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - = M RIETE 29,934 25,980
Interest on bank borrowings RITRENF S 7,955 8,779
Interest income FEWA (6,531) (3,093)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE MR ENEIE
equipment 103 -
Share-based payment expense B A X 3,808 7,431
Share of loss of an associate PG —fAE e AT 2 BB 7,924 =
Operating cash flows before movements in CEESEHBRINKEESRE
working capital 298,526 282,674
Increase in rental deposits MeReEm (1,282) (825)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (3Em) 122,512 (47,000)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables & 5 [ £ fb & U R I85> (32 40) 13,101 (76,857)
(Increase) decrease in bills receivables FEURZE & (32 00) IRk > (12,797) 4,387
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables & 5 & E b &1~ FRIELE 0 Ok 4>) 70,913 (27,434)
Decrease in bills payables EANE S (29,522) (21.212)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties FEASH A2 5 FRIER - (56,195)
Cash generated from operations MEEFR® 461,451 57,538
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBFEH (10,537) (5,067)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EE AT (43,952) (32,581)
US Income Tax paid [RANESESECY (657) (20,198)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING KT (DR ELERESFHE
ACTIVITIES 406,305 (302)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Payment for property, plant and equipment ME - R M ERIER R (86,063) (29,999)
Investment in an associate R—EBERATZIZE (79,493) =
Net placement of fixed bank deposits FHUE BIERIT IR RS 3R (43,548) (15,156)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE— B A A 31 (43,186) -
Net (placement) withdrawal of structured bank  (17/%) 12BN 2 EIRIR 1T 2 H5E
deposits (2,464) 15,156
Interest received 2 HEH] 6,531 3,093
Net withdrawal of pledged bank deposits TR E K HRITFRUFRE 5,728 117
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME - BERRERFTER
plant and equipment 15 61 _
Repayments from related parties R 7 B = 31,532
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING RETE (HR)ELREEEE
ACTIVITIES (242,434) 4,743
EREEERAT 73
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 371 DECEMBER 2015

EE2015F 12 A31 HILFE
2015 2014
20154 2014 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEES
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITEK (354,871) (388,792)
Dividends paid ERTRE (78,682) (83,417)
Interest paid ERTFLE (7,955) (8,779)
New bank borrowings raised EEMIRITER 258,274 459,363
Proceeds on issue of shares, net of share BT DRI FTS 08
issue expenses ?Dﬁ%?éﬂﬂxfﬁﬁﬂi‘i 101,843 127,120
Net proceeds on exercise of share option TR AR FT1S FRIB R 5E = 1
Repayments to related parties BEBEH A - (21,107)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING MEEE (B ELERSFE
ACTIVITIES (81,391) 84,389
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESEYRNFE
EQUIVALENTS 82,480 88,830
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FORERBEEEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 254,020 165,248
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fERF e (7,710) (58)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF $ﬂ<iﬂ$&iﬁ$%1§w ,
THE YEAR, represented by bank balances LASRTT# R IR € 27
and cash 328,790 254,020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

BIE 201512 A 31 HIFF/E
GENERAL 1. —R=E
The Company was incorporated and registered as an RRABR2012F6HASBREREREATES
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman 25 (191 FE=FEN] - Kixe RIEFT) KNAE
Islands under the Companies Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of HEFMK LI ELE A HERRERRA - K
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on REINRMDBE2014F7 A10BRREABER S
5 June 2012. The Company's shares have been listed on the FIBERAR ([BRAA)) ERLET - EZREERA
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited AAERBECERRAR([BHBELE] 22
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 10 July 2014. Its ultimate A BREBRLEE((ABELZEE )t
holding company is Sinomax Enterprises Limited (“Sinomax |2 avA: NI
Enterprises”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the "BVI").
The address of the registered office and the principal place AR EERTELEE SR AP.O.
of business of the Company are P.O. Box 309, Ugland Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and Units 1104, Cayman Islands [z & 78 JL5E /& 7= BR 38 36 5%
2005-2007, Level 20 Tower 1, MegaBox Enterprise Square b2 E35 1 B MegaBox 1 B2 201 2005-2007 = ©
Five, 36 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong,
respectively.
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The AR EREERARNEFTENBARNEEE
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in FEE M EE 36 ©
note 36.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in SAMBH/ERAB LB EY  BrihhAaR
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is also the functional NABINEEEHE
currency of the Company.
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FEAFITREBITEBUEREEAN(E

B REER])

FERFET RAEETEBMBREER

AEBECRAFEERERABEESTMAS( &
BEEEAE ) PBEME T I EE M H RS 2R
CHEVE

BB EsHER ERRENETE - mEMHR

HKAS 19 Contributions E195% (&3] 40)

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB HHRELERN  R2010FE2012FHES
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle CCHEN) B s MR o
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BEBUBEHRELEL R2011FE2013FEES
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle (BETA) BTSSR 5 HE R F JE iU

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures or amounts recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

FEMZFEFIAHAEERE M REMER
BREZFRACHLEEATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZEZ2015F 12831 HiLFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New or revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments!
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*
Amendments to HKFRS Investment Entities: Applying the

10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Z Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CO").

The provision of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 have been changed to
comply with these new requirements. Comparative
information in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2014 are presented and disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but
not under new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on historical basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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80

(Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 "Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “"Employee Benefits”
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date (see
the accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another HKFRS.

Investments in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of an associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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(Continued)

Investments in an associate (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts, returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy
below.
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(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised
so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

When an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, the transfer is made at the carrying
amount.

When there is a change of use of an investment property as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, the
transfer is made at the carrying amount.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes (i.e. construction in
progress) are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land for own use (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as "prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition.
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables, bills
receivables, pledged bank deposits, structured bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of loans and receivables
below).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment of loans and receivables
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
respective credit period, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

The amount of impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses were
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group
entity are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Group, including trade and other
payables, bills payables and bank borrowings, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or,
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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(Continued)

Impairment losses

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

FTESTHER(E)

RERE

RERESHR  AEEERIEAVEENERE
B UHERGEEATRBIZTEECDHR
MEREE - WAEMNZENR A EEEE
BRI U B RER - AR REEE (A WiRE -
HE AR BEAFTENEEMNATKREEEE - BIAX
SEEFEEBRNREELBMUNAINEISER -
W BEMEIE R — AR THA - MIRBEE
TEPEEEFRSELEN  IREMBERT
BIER—BOEEER THHE  BEOEER
TELBUNR/ES

AR E S B A R FEREHERAREREEMR
ERHREE - R EEREER - H5HRKA
SRMETIARAB IR RAMIRERE - LR EHE
[ iR & B [ E A E AT T 35 AT R B E R E R
(HHZEREHBENRAE S RENGE) ©

& E (KNS ELFEL) AT E S R HFH D
REREE  MEE(XRSELEM) WEEE
SROEHANOEHE - REBESNRNER

27
e ©

R ERERERED - AENEE (SREESE
B MERMEZERESEEERT TS EE
KR ANIR R RR (B T RERB B W 10 4B T 4 2 I S FE R
ZEE (KRS ELEL) /R EEE M ERETE R
ARENME < BEERA LS AR RN R R -
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
entity comprising the Group, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign
currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-
settled share-based transactions are set out in note 28.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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(Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use

orsell it;
o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
o how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
internally-generated intangible asset is measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
their assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
When current tax or deferred tax arises from initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

TEEHHEE)

BiE (8]

AT I8 4 7 0 B L 10 9 5 SRR -
ERB iR A R MM B RBUEFI SR E 2 H o
4 R AR -

EXERBEERABNIZBERERAENBREEM
EHEERSSERANRE  REXREHRE
B EREERNRE (RBUR)FE -

BEXEFRIBREREENGERRIZRA SETAY
RBEPRAIBESEEREERBBENREE
ARFEMEHHREER -

BIHA MR SE R AN B a5 N FERR o B BIHISE TR
HDREBEHNTIRSTRIEMESL - HAFY
ERBENEHAHNETRIEA -

CREEEESE SV ESE -2

RIERAAREEZ @5 BOR (AR EE 3Rt )E
ARBEFAFLEBARELCEMRRESERS
REERBEREEZHE - A RER - b5
REBAREDENBERRMERRE B HM
A= - BRERFETRRZEFME

fit BOAR BB R R YR S B B T LURA o
B 2 BT R B ST 2R - A
SHER Z BRI T ARR - MEETRE
BB BRI - BIR St E 2 BT T Rk
AR T AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in
order to identify slow-moving and obsolete inventories.
When the Group identifies items of inventories which have a
realisable value that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as
allowance for inventories. If the realisable value of
inventories of the Group becomes much lower than its
carrying amount subsequently, additional allowance may be
required.

Details of the Group's inventories are set out in note 20.
Estimated allowance for trade receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of trade
receivables. Allowance for these receivables is made based
on evaluation of collectability and on management'’s
judgment by reference to the estimation of the future cash
flows discounted at an effective interest rate to calculate the
present value. A considerable amount of judgment is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
debtors, including their current creditworthiness. If the
actual future cash flows were less than expected, additional
allowance may be required.

Details of the Group's trade receivables are set out in note
21.

A THBRENETERR ()

RBEPREEAAEBE T —EMBRFENE
ENBERAEAEAFHBMERREGHENT
EERMMAATHAERZROEMEERORMT -

FENMGRE

FEERARAERFERERRETE - A%
BERBEESHFENRYE - HRIBHEMREFE
EAREERGFERAMNAZREARENERE
B AEEGEHEFENSE ML FER
e MARAKRENFEAEREERRAKE
BRI - AIREZART R REIMNER

AEBENEEFHBHNME20 -
B 5 EWRRN GRS

EEETHREESEZREFAENAKEER - %
EFRWHEREVRB2ERERNEAERE
MEBIR AR R SR EMT - R EBRFGE K
EEENHEMIETE - FEEBANKKERS
S BIEXEHE  BREZMNEERR -
HERRKBSREDRIEY - RIRTBEA(ER S
B -

AEENE 5 RUSRFBHNME21 -
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

100

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated provision for the income tax and related
obligations

As detailed in note 11, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD”) has initiated a tax audit on certain
subsidiaries of the Company. The tax audit covers the years
of assessment from 2005/06 onwards. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group has made the
best estimate of the provisions for Hong Kong Profits Tax
and related potential penalty and/or interest for the tax
audit in the consolidated financial statements. Provision for
potential penalty and/or interest is recognised in other
expenses on the consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and included in other
payables. If the final payment required for the settlement of
the tax audit is more or less than expected, additional
impact to profit or loss may arise.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
manufacture and sale of health and household products
and polyurethane foam. Health and household products
mainly represent quality visco-elastic pillows, mattress
toppers and mattresses.

The Group mainly sells its visco-elastic products on a
wholesale basis primarily to retailers in the United States of
America (the "US"), who typically resell the products to
consumers through their own country-wide retail networks.
The products are sold under own, licensed or third-party

brands.

The Group also sells its products under “SINOMAX" brand
through its retail network comprising stand-alone retail
shops and concession counters in department stores in the
People’'s Republic of China (other than Hong Kong and
Macau) (the “PRC"), Hong Kong and Macau. In addition to
the retail network, the Group also conducts direct sales to
corporates in Hong Kong and the PRC, and maintains online
sales.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

As a separate business line, the Group also supplies quality
polyurethane foam tailored to customers’ specific needs
and requirements under “Tung Ah” (% Z5) brand primarily
to furniture manufacturers in the PRC on a wholesale basis.

Taking into account the different types of products, the
Group’s operating segments, based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker (“"CODM")
(i.e. the executive directors of the Company) for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, are as follows:

Export sales - wholesales of products to
overseas customers;

Retail and - sales of products through self-
corporate operated retail network, third-
sales party distributors, direct sales

to corporates and other
customers and
e-commerce sales channel; and

Polyurethane - wholesales of polyurethane foam
foam sales to furniture manufacturers in
the PRC.

These operating segments also represent the Group's
reportable segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies.

5.

WARDEER (F)

1ERBIY R NEBETASE T AEFBE L
[3RIE ] mEAERRRERHENT S T ARR
BERBRNEERRERDRK -

ZRETABRENERLBERNERELERRE
((EREEREE ]| AARANHAITES)

P AR EAF B IR D B S B R 2 B #L
AEENEEDEOT

HOHE - MEINEEHEBES

TERARIHEE - BREETEMEE -
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
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(Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2015

WARDERER (F)

P LN S

AN BAREEREE D BE D ORAREEDN

BZ2015F12A31HLLEFE

Retail and
corporate Polyurethane

Export sales sales foam sales Consolidated
ZER BB
HOHEE AFHE SEREE we
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET F&T THET
SEGMENT REVENUE 2 EBULA

External sales SNERSHE 1,198,664 567,137 1,104,045 2,869,846
Segment profit paN: b 257,451 164,016 172,226 593,693

Share of loss of an associate JE(G —EH% & A a)
2 [E518 (7,924)
Unallocated other income ROMEMIA 40,922
Unallocated costs and expenses 77 Bt i 2 K B 52 (382,252)
Profit before taxation 4 F5 B A A 244,439

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014F 12831 BIEFEE

Retail and
corporate  Polyurethane

Export sales sales foam sales  Consolidated
ZTER Bals

HOSEE NG LS RIS o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET

SEGMENT REVENUE 2 EBA
External sales GNERSHE 1,374,634 380,522 928,252 2,683,408
Segment profit bRzl 354,571 70,638 112,556 537,765
Unallocated other income Ao EEMIA 16,314
Unallocated costs and expenses 77 Bt ik AN K F 52 (307,212)
Profit before taxation R A8 A 246,867

There were no inter-segment sales during both years.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

In the preparation of the segment profit, certain other
income items, costs of goods sold and expenses are
unallocated and not included in the profit earned by each
segment. Unallocated costs and expenses mainly represent
unallocated costs of goods sold (representing
manufacturing overhead attributable to manufacturing
process undertaken in certain of the subsidiaries and
allowance made for inventories), unallocated selling and
distribution costs, corporate and headquarter expenses and
other expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

No further analysis is presented for certain amounts
included or excluded in the measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets and liabilities as the information are
not regularly provided to the CODM for review.

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the retail
shops and concession counters for retail sales and location
of customers for other sales.

5.

WAR D EBER (F)

2R R WA SRR ()

RREDEaME - ETEMKRAER - 58K
AR AAREDE » TR AZ D BAHRER -
AROBERARFAXEBBARANEHERAN(RET
MEARETHNEERFBENEERSREE
B RAOBHE RN KA - AR KA
REMAX - WEFENACMEREERKEZ
WA EEITE R D B R B

WEBFED BB LD BEERBERFAEA
SR ETRRE-F2I0M  BRERH
ERYIFEMBERTERESERRESEMN -

1A R
AEBRBINFEPBANER HIRETEEH

ENTEERTEEMAME I EMEERS
HIPTEH TIAZ2 5! ©

2015 2014

2015 F 2014 £

HK$’000 HK$'000

FaExT FET

The US ESE 1,101,612 1,280,811
The PRC oy 1,532,469 1,137,157
Hong Kong BB 157,893 164,403
Macau SR 6,465 7,406
Europe B 31,454 47,594
Other Asian countries HAih T MBIR 18,259 19,780
Other American countries H MBI 17,144 22,828
Others Hh 4,550 3,429
2,869,846 2,683,408
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEHER(EZ)
(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) i E R (E)
Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding AREFERSEE(TRBEEEHBEEE)NER
deferred tax assets) is presented based on the location of THIREBEMEM TIAZS] :
the assets:
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
The PRC s 276,317 264,464
The US E3E] 119,174 9,211
Hong Kong a5 20,265 17,218
Macau JEFT 39 2,676
415,795 293,569
Information about major customers: FTEEZEHER :
An analysis of revenue from a customer in the segment of REARE L AHEE DB —ML T~ HRWA (BB
export sales contributing over 10% of the Group's total REB LU 10% LA L) B9 HTEAT -
revenue during the year is as follows:
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Customer A ZEA 755,508 833,673
6. OTHER INCOME 6. EHAWA
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Interest income 2 A 6,531 3,093
Rental income WA 6,414 5,299
Scrap sales (Note a) SRS (i a) 31,723 28,077
Government subsidy (Note b) e (FisEb) 1,579 3,757
Others i 1,699 2,926
47,946 43,152

104 SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

EIZ 201512 31 HIEFE
6. OTHER INCOME (Continued) 6. HMWA (&)
Notes: 3 -
(a) The corresponding cost of scrap inventories is inseparable from (a) HEATEMEFENK ARG ABERAE
cost of sales.
(b)  During the current year, the PRC government granted subsidy of b) RAFE PEBFETAQG—HTEMBEATA
approximately HK$1,579,000 (2014: HK$1,198,000) to a PRC £/1#91,579,000/ 7T (20144F : 1,198,000/ 7T ) < &8 -
subsidiary of the Company with amounts equivalent to a certain BERERM B NHERETE LS E -

percentage of the tax paid to the local government.

Additional subsidies of approximately HK$85,000 (2014: O R F S W B 49 85,0007 7T (2014 4F 2,559,000
HK$2,559,000) were received on export insurance expense. PSTT) BESNEEL o
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HEKREKER
2015 2014
2015 F 20144F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Allowance for doubtful debts REREAE (10,804) (18,634)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts RERE A 995 18,312
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE « BE RRENEIE
equipment (103) -
Net exchange losses M N B R FRE (1,317) (3,357)
(11,229) (3,673)
BEKRESRAFA 105
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

106

8. MERBLATEF

2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTAT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after M GEA) A IR IBEFEMBRHATNEF

charging (crediting):

Directors’ remuneration (note 9) EEH (79 14,268 16,066
Other staff costs HBIKA 227,385 215,105
Retirement benefit scheme contributions for other staff  E fth 8 T KRR @F 5121 31,873 29816
Share based payment expenses, excluding those of Wi S B (T@%i%)

directors 1,534 3,125
Total staff costs BIM AL 275,060 264,112
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AR E IR 592 603
Depreciation of investment properties REMEIE 1,564 905
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BENRREITE 29,934 25,980
Total depreciation and amortisation FERSHEER 32,090 27,488
Operating lease rentals in respect of TIRENREHERS

— rented premises —HEYE 32,571 27,847

— retail stores (included in selling and distribution —ZEE (GHAEE RO HEKA)

costs) 21,932 15,582
54,503 43,429
Department store counters concessionaire commission 5 & /A 815 %%&F%« {iika
(included in selling and distribution costs) (Note a) (ﬁ)\fﬁ A HEA) (it a) 56,193 58,279
110,696 101,708
Auditor's remuneration (including fees for non-audit “EMME Gt AEEZREER)

services) 3,895 4,663
Net reversal of allowance for inventories FERERDFE

(included in cost of sales) (Note b) (GFASHERA) (H3Eb) (1,071) (5,120)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BARAASINTEERAE

(included in cost of sales) (Gt ASHERAN) 2,083,441 1,952,144
Research and development expenses R X (GTAE MR ) (i c)

(included in other expenses) (Note ) 39,820 16,038
Listing expenses (included in other expenses) X GTARMRAX) - 2,392
Notes: P -

(a)  Concessionaire commission in respect of department store (a) BEQAFFEEETCEMAE—RUSHEBENERIFEE
counters is generally calculated by applying pre-determined BIRBAETADLLETE -
percentages to actual sales made through respective counters.

(b)  The reversal of allowance for inventories was mainly resulted (b) THFEBHBELDDITEHREBARZAICETIREFEN
from the utilisation of the inventories of which allowance had FERE -
previously been provided.

(0) Research and development expenses comprised staff salaries of (0 WERZBEFENEITHL12,187,000/% (20144 :

HK$12,187,000 (2014: HK$5,862,000), which were also included in

the staff costs disclosed above.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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AE2015F 12 A31 HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERESTHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments comprise E=kEeTHRAEHCEEREEERNEES
payments to the following directors, which include the chief BEEmMRA NN EE(BREAQRRRSITHAR)
executive of the Company, by the Group in connection with YRFIE o M EF L MFBEHIOT

the management of the affairs of the Group. The amount
paid to each director was as follows:

Performance Retirement
related  Share based benefit
Salaries and incentive payment scheme
Name of Director Fees  allowances  payments expense  contributions Total
#&  EBRR ROXN  RAEA
£33 s Rk NEs X HEfR #it

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiEn FiEn Fign TR TR

(Note (i)

(2z0)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z 2015512 831 BLLEE
Mr. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman) HEALE(EER) - 1902 380 748 18 3,048
Mr. Cheung Tung KRS & (EHARRRTHAL)

(President and the Chief Executive) - 1,969 450 717 18 3,154
Mr. Chen Feng RiLE - 2,149 500 343 - 2,992
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung S ik - 1,470 480 225 18 2,193
Ms. Lam Fei Man ST - 1,042 380 241 18 1,681
Mr. Wong Chi Keung EHEE 240 - - - - 240
Professor Lam Sing Kwong Simon MHAKRER 240 = = - - 240
Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew BHERE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie FEEE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Wu Tak Lung REEsE 240 - - - - 240

1,200 8,532 2,190 2,274 72 14,268
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HE2015F 12831 HILFE
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERESTHRAEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Performance Retirement
related  Share based benefit
Salaries and incentive payment scheme
Name of Director Fees  allowances  payments expense  contributions Total
e AERR  ROIN  RKEA
g2t e R i &7 Fx It &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THT TAL TAL TAL AL
(Note (i)
(B (9)
For the year ended 31 December 2014  HZ2014%12831 AL EE
Mr. Lam Chi Fan (Chairman) WEARE(EER) - 1,860 480 1416 17 3773
Mr. Cheung Tung FREF (BARRSTHAR)
(President and the Chief Executive) - 1925 650 1,357 17 3949
Mr. Chen Feng BiELA - 2,160 736 649 - 3,545
Mr. Lam Kam Cheung WL - 1,420 500 42 17 2363
Ms. Lam Fei Man MEZ/ME = 1023 338 458 17 183
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Note (i) T (i) 120 = - - - 120
Professor Lam Sing Kwong Simon (Note (i) #1405 (HizE (i) 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Fan Chun Wah Andrew (Note (i) SEERE A A (WIS (i) 120 - - _ _ 120
Mr. Zhang Hwo Jie (Note (i) SRAEE 4 (kG 120 - = - . 120
Mr. Wu Tak Lung (Note (ii) R (ki) 120 - - - - 120
600 8,388 2,104 4306 68 16,066
Notes: M&E

108

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

SIN

Performance related incentive payments is recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company and is approved by the
board of directors, with reference to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

These are the independent non-executive directors appointed
on 4 March 2014.

No director nor the chief executive of the Company waived any
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014.

There is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings arrangement in
favour of the directors of the Company, controlled bodies
corporate of the directors of the Company and connected
entities with such directors of the Company in respect of the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

OMAX GROUP LIMITED
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10. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

11.

(a)

(b)

Emoluments of senior management

Of the five senior management of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, all of
them are directors of the Company and their
remuneration has been disclosed in note 9.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2015, all are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in note 9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(a)

(b)

10. & S H A

BREEEHTMH

HE2014FEK2015F 12 A3 BIEEE - K
ARIAMNESREEEEY  2BYAKXDQT
SEREHNMI O HE -

AUBEHFMAL
HZE2014FK2015F12A31BILEFE - K

SERURSHFMALET  2BI/AR
FEREREHFMNMEKEE -

11. FIBHRAX

2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Current tax BIERRR 18

Hong Kong Profits Tax (Note i) BEBMEH () 1,393 2119
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT") (Note ii) RENEMSH ([EMEH ) () 56,781 31,756
US income tax (Note iii) EBIATER (M aEiD 4,757 9,666
62,931 43,541

(Over) underprovision in prior years BAFE (B T2 EH
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNER (588) (157)
PRCEIT ST ST 1,637 1,429
US income tax EBFTEH (2,743) 110
(1,694) 1,382
Deferred taxation (note 19) EERIE (PEE19) (1,474) (1,003)
59,763 43,920

Notes:

(ii)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory rate of 25% of the
assessable profit for those subsidiaries established in the PRC for
both years.

The amounts include PRC withholding tax on distributed profits
of a PRC subsidiary of HK$1,115,000 (2014: HK$466,000).

B 4 B UG BTy S R AR B FE0 16.5%
e

P 4 ) o B b PR AS B DR i B Sz 2 BT B
B2 ERBUR A 2 25% 2 EFEBIRFTHE

SRBRER—HPENBQRMYEFEE R EEN
1,115,000 7% 7T (2014 £F : 466,000 7T) °
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1. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

110

Notes (Continued):

(iii)

The US income tax includes (a) federal income tax calculated at
34% on the estimated US federal taxable income and (b) state
income tax calculated at various state income tax rates on the
estimated state taxable income for both years. The income
subject to tax in a specific state (i.e. state taxable income) is
calculated from adjusting the federal taxable income with state
modifications and apportionment (i.e. percentage of taxable
income that should be allocated to each state in which the Group
operates in).

Under Decree-Law no. 58/99/M, the Group’s Macau subsidiary
incorporated under the Decree-Law, is exempted from Macau
Complementary tax as it satisfies the relevant conditions as
specified in the Decree-Law, one of which being that it does not
sell its products to any Macau resident company during both
years.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

. BB (&)

M (48)

(iii)

KR ST ERE @) A BB ERTYA - 1%
34%3]%%1.:%519’]%&%%«#&&( b) 18 4 [Z A 3L i
FEMERBUA - RN PAISBR T H AN RIS
15 %iJIH B & SR B N (BN ER B AR AL 32 M
{EA@U& A B F R R (BIADBRER

i“‘%%fiﬁ’lx)\lﬁﬁ’wgu%m%]\ﬁ ) mEtE

H‘

RIEE 58/99/MSES » REBRIBRZES MK L

FRPIFE AR - AIERRAAMRPIE TR - Tomn
ENARESHATRANBBGN - Eh—BAERH
B E R E A DRI A AR HEELER

AR e B M H 2 U as R A0 R B AT E A B A
RIPTIS R ST EI RN T

2015 2014
20155 20145
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Profit before taxation B A5t Al 7 244,439 246,867
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% BREBNERE165% Aﬁ'ﬁmﬁlﬁ 40,332 40,733
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate B E AREBRARBETE 1,307 -
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AAHBNRAZ R BN R
purposes 2,833 7,548
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes BASHOWA GRS E (580) (503)
(Over) under provision in prior years BAEFE (B2R) TR (1,694) 1,382
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference not R FHERE Al HUR B M =B R IS 2
recognised = 3
Utilisation of deductible temporary difference BARNBER TR ARG T E5E
previously not recognised (844) =
Deferred tax on withholding tax on undistributed HEME AR R IREFHTFENH
earnings of PRC subsidiaries ﬁﬂfﬂlﬁ 1,376 1,537
Tax effect of profit of a subsidiary under tax TERPIER RTIER B R RIRFE
exemption in Macau ﬁﬁkgﬁm (5,913) (21,287)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating 7 E fth B3 # & 4 & KB B A BlH)
in other jurisdictions TRAREZE 22,946 14,507
Income tax expenses SR 59,763 43,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD"”) commenced a
tax audit on certain subsidiaries of the Company in prior
period. The IRD has issued estimated profits tax
assessments of HK$14,000,000, HK$24,000,000,
HK$26,725,000 and HK$9,900,000 to the Group relating to
the years of assessment 2005/06, 2006/07, 2007/08 and
2008/09 for the financial years ended 31 December 2005,
2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The Group has lodged
objection with the IRD against the assessments and the IRD
agreed that the relevant subsidiaries can holdover the tax
demanded for the said years of assessment, except for the
amounts of HK$175,000, HK$2,272,000 and HK$8,150,000
concerned for the years of assessment 2006/07, 2007/08 and
2008/09, respectively, were required to be paid by acquiring
tax certificates by one of the subsidiaries in 2013, 2014 and
2015 respectively.

The Group has provided various information and supporting
documents to address the enquiries raised by the IRD and
to defend its tax position (i.e. offshore claim in relation to
certain of its profits, as well as the tax deductibility of various
expenses). The IRD is still in the process of reviewing the
case and has not expressed any formal opinion on the
potential tax liability.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company and based
on their best estimate, the Group has made adequate
provisions for Hong Kong Profits Tax and related potential
penalty and/or interest for the tax audit as at 31 December
2015 and 2014.

1. FREBMZ (&)

RBEEE  RER(BER]) ML EAQ AN
BETHBARETHEEZ - 8220054 - 2006
22007 F 2008 F 12 A3 HIEHBEE - B
% BB 5 BllFt 2005/06 F + 2006/07 & ~ 2007/08 F
N2008/9FE R FRERASER L B A
14,000,000 7T * 24,000,000 7T * 26,725,000 7
7L % 9,900,000 % T K (A T RS T ATl - REBIE
MZETHMRERREER  HERRAERE
F—REIKTBARAEE RS BIES20134F ~ 20144
K 2015 5 B 15 7 87 M 2 5l #t 2006/07 & + 2007/08
F J 2008/09 F iR B F E B R & 88 175,0008 ¢
2,272,000 75 % 8,150,000 & st o - #EEFHIE A A
AIEE S ERIR S ESRFIE -

AEECHBBRIELNERIRHTBERN KX
R A - PABLELRERRBEAAO (B B8 EL i A e B =
RRNMZIAEFMXOBIEIR) LR - BRI
HEBERETEERYARAREERNBABEER
EAEAER -

ARREBEERE  URBEBEESHRERED B
2015F 2014512 A31H - AEBC R BE
BTG EAEBBES R SHFBE
Fo R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

BUE2015F 12 H 31 HIFFE
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2015 2014
20154 20145
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the FARERBDIKZARE]
Company recognised as distribution during LTMAREAR S ¢
the year:
Interim, paid — HK1.5 cents per share for 2015 2015 & 2 R {~ # BRf% &8 — = A& I 15 1.5
(2014: HK1.0 cent per share) AL (20145 - AR 1.0740) 26,250 16,500
Final, paid — HK2.5 cents per share for 2014 2014 F 2 R REAR E—&F M5 2.5
(2014: nil for 2013) AL (2014 5 : 20134 4%) 43,750 -
70,000 16,500
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final RBREHRE  EFSEZREE 2015512 A 31
dividend of HK2.5 cents per share in respect of the year HIEF RN RER GRS, 25811 - & H#4
ended 31 December 2015, amounting to approximately 43,750,000 7T « MEEFRRNEERRBFT KNS
HK$43,750,000 has been proposed by the board of directors EHE - BB AREREL RN ZEEE M MK
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the AEREEE -

112

forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed final
dividend is not recognised as a liability in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

BIE 201512 A 31 HIFF/E

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AABHEAEANEBESREARAREEZT TIRIENA
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TEEE -

following data:

2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted A1 & & H A R #E R T2 & F -
earnings per share:
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RRABHEA ARIEERRT
the Company 172,674 194,393
2015 2014
2015 20144
Number of shares: RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FTEERERRFN L BREE
for the purpose of basic earnings per share IS 1,711,645,836 1,571,918,438
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in BARTERRENETES
respect of outstanding share options EpilivaZ 2,658,793 2,015,487
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FESREERFN T AREE
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share hikE 8 1,714,304,629 1,573,933,925
The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and FE0U4FEREARBERN 2 TRRHEED
diluted earnings per share for 2014 has taken into account SRR BERMBET(ERRME2760) BBITZ
the shares issued pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue (as f& 5 o

defined in note 27(a)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

B Z2015F 12531 HILFE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYE
HK$'000
FHT

cosT B
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1H1H 32,786
Exchange adjustments BEE 3 B ©@n
Transferred from property, plant and equipment HEAME - KE KK 23,617
Transferred to property, plant and equipment R EYE  BE &R (32,532)
At 31 December 2014 7R2014F 12 H31H 23,780
Exchange adjustments i 5 SR B (1,270)
Transferred from property, plant and equipment EEOYE  RENMRE 9,740
At 31 December 2015 MR2015F 12 A31H 32,250
DEPRECIATION E/in
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1H 3,956
Exchange adjustments M 5 S E @1
Provided for the year FERE 905
Transferred from property, plant and equipment EEAYE  BERRK 591
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EERTYE  BERRK (3,925)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12 A31H 1,506
Exchange adjustments HE 5 S E (113)
Provided for the year FRERE 1,564
Transferred from property, plant and equipment EEAYE  BERRK 617
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F12A31H 3,574
CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2015 7R 2015F 12 H31H 28,676
At 31 December 2014 # 2014412 A 31 B 22,274
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group's investment properties are erected on land in
the PRC and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the term of the lease or 20 years.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair values of the Group's
investment properties were HK$91,679,000 (2014:
HK$43,508,000). The fair values have been determined by
the directors of the Company.

The directors of the Company determined the fair values of
the investment properties at the end of each reporting
period by reference to the comparison method of valuation.
The inputs used by the directors of the Company in the fair
value measurements mainly include the market value of
comparable properties of similar size, character and
location.

In the opinion of the directors, the current use of the
investment properties is their highest and best use.

The Group's investment properties represent industrial
properties located in Zhejiang Province, the PRC and their
fair values are measured with unobservable inputs, which is
categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers of investment properties into or out
of level 3 during the year.

14. REYE(E)

AEBMEBREMERIEERTE LM - UEK
FEBAFHRANL20FAERNE - UREFHR
ySE= R

R2015F 12 A31H ' AEBMEEMERFE

791,679,000 7T (2014 4F : 43,508,000 7T) © A&
N EECEEATE-

ARREFAEZHRENRREBEELIEERE

MENLFE R BERFER - KRAREFAN
AOBABEZBREES  FHERUERSNA
&M 2 A
EERRREVENENAEAERSEERR
EAZ -

AEBENREMEDINPENNTENTEYE
HRATFEURTABERBABEBAE CTo8R
NHERBEREPHE=R -

FAREMELEBASELE =R -
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BHZE2015F 1231 HIFFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

116

15. ¥1% - BERRE

Leasehold
improvements,
Plantand  furniture and Motor  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery fixtures vehicles i progress Total
REXE
BT BEREE XAR%E RE HEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TAL TAL TAL TAL
COST A
At 1 January 2014 R01451718 138,304 80,230 1129 7,230 429 271,185
Exchange adjustrents ERA% (52 73 6 10 7 44
Additions RE 10 21,805 10,689 2067 - 34,571
Construction expenditure capitalised BAERER - = - - 5,052 5,052
Transfers b 1538 2024 - - (3.562) -
Transferred from investment properties ~ B&BREWE (i)

(Note) 32532 - - - - 32532
Transferred to investment properties (Note) & Z R &Y% (i) 23617) = - - - (23617)
At 31 December 2014 R014E12A318 148,715 104,132 51,824 9.307 5789 319,767
Exchange adjustments A% (6,729) (4.994) (794) 428) (304) (13,249
Additions E 1,020 12979 9,041 23% 6,523 31,961
Disposal it = (701) (48) (245) - (994)
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-ZHEAT 1312 425 4 1272 - 6,884
Transfers b 87 4,261 - - (4,354) -
Transferred to investment properties (Note) B Z R AW % (i) 9,740) = = - - (9.740)
At 31 December 2015 R015E12A31H 134,665 119,935 60,071 12,304 7,654 334,629
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2014 R04E1A1R 19,059 23133 24,222 2530 - 68,944
Exchange adjustments B A% 57 ) 14 4 - "
Provided for the year EERE 7344 9937 7509 1,190 - 25,980
Transferred from investment properties SR B REME (fiz)

(Note) 3925 - - - - 3925
Transferred to investment properties (Note) B & Z R & 9% (i) (591) = = = - (591)
At 31 December 2014 R014E12A31H 29,794 33112 31,745 3724 - 98,375
Exchange adjustrents ER A% (1,654) (1,879) (9 (179) = 4,137)
Provided for the year EERE 7441 11,832 8,613 2048 = 29.934
Elimination on disposal HEMSH = (59) (44 (190) = (830)
Transferred to investment properties (Note) B Z 1 &Y% (i) (617) = = = = (617)
At 31 December 2015 RO15E12A31H 34964 2473 39,885 5,403 - 122,725
CARRYING VALUES I
At 31 December 2015 R015E12A31H 99,701 71,462 20,186 6,901 7,654 211,904
At 31 December 2014 R014E12A31H 118,921 71,020 20,079 5583 5789 21,392

The Group's buildings are erected on land in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

EIZ 201512 31 HIEFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥I% - BERZRE(E)
(Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of WETMZMEYZE BEMREER (EEZTER
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in M) K AR E FMAET AL A F BN RIS/ B E(E
progress, less their residual values over their estimated FEGERIZ TS F F R ET s
useful lives, using the straight-line method and at the
following rates per annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of BF REAFIR 205 (ARE
the lease or 20 years R EAS B %)
Plant and machinery 10%-20% B w2 10% — 20%
Leasehold improvements, ~ 20%-33'/:% or over the term HERE KA 20% —33'/3% 3 3L 78 £ 5F 5
furniture and fixtures of the lease, whichever is shorter MEE (LAMEHR RS E %)
Motor vehicles 20% VRE 20%
Note: Property, plant and equipment were transferred to investment Mz W% BERRHERTERET(GASEREREY
properties evidenced by end of owner-occupation. E
Investment properties were transferred to property, plant and REMENREEETCAREREDE  BENHR
equipment evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation. o
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. ERHEERIE
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold AREBENBENBEERBVREETRERMNBEE T
land interests in the PRC. e
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEmE BT ATA -
Non-current asset FERBEE 21,989 23,630
Current asset MBEE 580 607
22,569 24,237
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17.

118

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. R—BBE AT 2 M

2015 2014

20155 20145

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THIT

Cost of investment B BN 79,493 -
Share of post-acquisition loss FE(5 Wi 1R & 1E (7,924) _
71,569 -

Name of associate

Details of the associate of the Group at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Place of incorporation

and operation

RBERAEERE AR 2FBOT

Proportion of

ownership interest

and voting power Principal
held by the Group activities

Note: During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

entered into a securities purchase agreement (the “Purchase
Agreement”) with, among others, Dormeo North America, LLC
("“Dormeo”), a company formed as a limited liability company
pursuant to the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, to
acquire 36.5% of all of the membership interest in Dormeo at an
aggregate cash consideration of United States dollars ("US$")
10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,500,000). Acquisition-related
costs amounting to HK$1,993,000 related to the acquisition had
been included in the cost of investment. Pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, the Group's membership interest in Dormeo is
initially set at 36.5%, but will be automatically reduced to 25% at
31 December 2017 if certain performance warranties given by the
investee and its parent company are met. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, it is likely the performance warranties
will be met and accordingly, the equity interest of the associate
has accounted for 25% by the Group and the fair value of the
derivative arising from the possible change in membership
interest in Dormeo is considered insignificant.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

AEBEFE
FrEREERR
& AR BB ST B SL R AR 3 Bh RERRLHI FEXEKR
Dormeo North America, LLC The US 36.5% Retail and
EE (Note) wholesale of
) health and
household
products
B =N
(EEYSEN =y

ek : FAR - ARAIEEH B QR E(HEFBIE)Dormeo
North America, LLC ([ Dormeo ) (— BB R 5 1
BRABEARIMNEBERETARIIVEFEEHZ
(TBEWHR]) - AR L2 (E10,000,0003% 7T ([
7t]) (FE 1 77,500,000 7T ) Y2 & Dormeo 36.5% 2
BRREm - BERESHEZWERBRARE K
1,993,000 ST B 5 AR EK AT - RIFEE B -
7525 B 7 Dormeo H) % 3R 245 fx W17 4 36.5% B i
WIREFREGRBGEZ ETRAOREEER - 8
1B 2017 F 12 31 BEBEIRZE25% - AARIESE
RAE - BHARBIERSER  Filt - BEQRRRE
1G5 [E ) 25% N Dormeo KX SR 28 Tl sE B B E £
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ
17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the associate’s unaudited financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

R—EBE Qa2 EE(E)

BERAKRERERRMBEMBEHINMT - T
XU BENRBBREREREMBERE LN RR
BERBREEZMBREARINIREHE

BERARNRAEDZEHEINZFRAMHHRE
MIEE

Financial position B # 5k R
2015
2015
HK$’000
TFET
Current assets MENEE 59,363
Non-current assets FERBEE 17,241
Current liabilities mEaE 54,466
Net assets BEFE 22,138
Result for the period since acquisition B R AR 2 A
HK$'000
FHET
Revenue g 33,697
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the period  HARSIE1E & & 1 5 > 4858 (17,335)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate recognised in the consolidated financial

AR R RN R A B R R P RERAR
Banmga s REEZHRNT

statements:

HK$'000
FHAT
Net assets of the associate /N W= V= 22,138

Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in the AEBEBE QAR TEEER 2 L0
associate 25%
5,535
Goodwill EEs 55,200
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition WEEBZ A FEARMNTE 8,841
Acquisition cost WeBE A AR 1,993
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in the associate ZN&EB{FH & A REZR 2 RE S 71,569
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18.

19.

120

RENTAL DEPOSITS

The balances represent rental deposits placed by the Group
in connection with its rented premises, retail stores and
department store counters. The relevant leases will either
expire after one year from the end of the reporting period,
or if the remaining lease term is less than one year, the
Group has the positive intention to renew the leases upon
expiry. Therefore, the balances are classified as non-current.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the deferred tax (liabilities) assets

18. &S

RHBEENAREREEENE TEEKAE
AREBEENNESEZS - HERESRB®RE
HIREE —FEm » KMERBFOEHEFHIRN
— & AEEEREENEEHE - it &
HREDBERIERD -

19. IELEBIA

AT RRRENERINEER A (AR EER

recognised and movements thereon during the reporting H#
period:
Allowance
for
Undistributed ~ Unrealised inventories
profits of PRC profit in and doubtful
subsidiaries  inventories  Tax losses debts Others Total
i
i) N FERE FER
RAERF RiaR HIEARE RERE Hitr st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2014 R201461A18 (8,275) 3,144 3,741 6,938 1,662 7,210
Exchange adjustments B 5 3% ) = k) 13 2 5
(Charged) credited to profit or loss 718 % (F1%) 5t A (1,537) (28) (3,000) 5,844 (742) 537
Released to profitor lossupon R BREZER
payment of dividends 466 - - - - 466
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31H (9,353) 316 738 12,795 922 8,218
Exchange adjustments o ) = (33) 33 66 )
(Charged) credited to profit or loss 7182 (F15%) 5t A (1,376) (724) 2,115 104 240 359
Released to profitor lossupon R BREEER
payment of dividends 1,115 - - - - 1115
At 31 December 2015 B2015512 831 A 9619 239 2820 12,866 1228 9,69

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statements of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ

19. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 19. EERE (&)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

AT BB B8RS (F L BT IRGE RO

2015 2014

2015 % 2014 &

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Deferred tax assets EEFRIEE E 19,937 18,230
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEEE (10,247) (10,012
9,690 8,218

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$17,090,000 (2014: HK$2,952,000) available
for offset against future profits. Deferred tax assets have
been recognised in full in respect of such tax losses. The tax
losses as at 31 December 2015 can be carried forward
indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had deductible
temporary differences mainly arising from allowance for
inventories and doubtful debts and unrealised profits on
inventories of HK$52,808,000 (2014: HK$70,791,000).
Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of such
deductible temporary differences of HK$52,333,000 (2014:
HK$70,774,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to the remaining deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in respect of
temporary differences attributable to the undistributed
profit earned by certain of the PRC subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015 of Renminbi (“RMB") 228,975,000
(equivalent to HK$284,480,000) (2014: RMB106,894,000
(equivalent to HK$134,004,000)), as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December
2015, deferred tax has been provided in respect of
remaining balance of the temporary difference to the
undistributed profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards.

R2015F 12 A31H - NEE#E A X 17,090,0008
70 (20144 : 2,952,000/ 7 ) B &) 7 B A % 18 /&5
B A RERERES - BERBEEEEHRA
FARIBEETASE®R - R2015F12H31H°
R TL TR B 18 n] SR IR B 45 -

R2015F12A831H - AEBEEFEHFTER
RORB AR 17 & o B35 5 I BE A 1O AT 10088 e B 14
%= % /52,808,000 7T (20144 :70,791,000%
JC) o BRI TEE E 552,333,000/ 7T (2014 4F -
70,774,000 7 7T ) &) AT F08 B B 1 ZE BB T LARERR o
1R K AT BE 78 B ER B i 1) 0] FR VB 08k B B 14 2=
BE iR A TR & AT F0 R R B M 2 R RE SRR TR
HEE o

BIEPBEMEMSHE - B2008F1 A1 8 @
BB AR SLEABGE M ATE IR EBHNIE
HF o f R AN S B R o b B (O] R B 1 = FRAO RS RS
AR A AR KA aE B I RR i =58 - Bt
S gt B B A B 201545 12 A 31 B BB R
DikaFARE ([ ANRE]) 228,975,000 7T (FE »
284,480,000/ 1) (20144 = AR™ 106,894,000 7T
(FAE R 134,004,000 787 ) ) FE(h BY BRI 2 B8 1EH
EIEFE B - 2015912 A31H - B BN
B A AH 2008 4F 1 A 1 B A BRELA) & 9 K 4 A B
R Z N REED IR B -
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EE2015F 12 A31 HILFE

19. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 19. EEBE ()
The Group is liable to withholding tax on dividends REEZERL Sinomax USAZ IRV AR S48 B0 -
distributed from Sinomax USA. As at 31 December 2015, R2015F 12 A31H » K% E 5 Sinomax USAK
the Group had temporary differences relating to the 7 s ) B BR R 14 Z 58 7% 3,851,000 7T (FHE R
undistributed profits of Sinomax USA of US$ 3,851,000 29,892,000/ 7T ) (2014 4F - 4,334,000 & 7T (1HE R
(equivalent to HK$29,892,000) (2014: US$4,334,000 33,636,000/87T)) o B3RS 55 [ B4 Il 43 [B] B ks
(equivalent to HK$33,636,000)). Deferred taxation has not EZREMERE - B MRA R KRR KA RE# O B i
been provided for such temporary differences as the Group MEE - B ERZSHEREEEELRERIE
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary B -

differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

20. INVENTORIES 20. F&
2015 2014
2015 F 20144
HK$/000 HKS'000
F& T FET
Raw materials R 72,292 87,805
Work in progress EETRE 31,887 25,530
Finished goods I8 T 194,528 284,715
298,707 398,050
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ES R EHMEWFIE
2015 2014
2015 & 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T T
Trade receivables 2 5 KGR 548,408 552,264
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREAE (27,514) (28,316)
520,894 523,948
Other receivables H b fE IR

Prepayments for purchase of raw materials BERMENTENRER SRS
and operating expenses 67,007 33,137
Other taxes recoverable H b AT Y [0 F 18 15,230 15,766
Advance to staff BB TR 5,482 2,952
Others Hit 4,793 8,937
92,512 60,792
Total trade and other receivables B 5 K H A U R IB 4258 613,406 584,740
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group's retail sales are made through its retail network
comprising stand-alone retail shops and concession
counters in department stores. The Group also sells health
and household products directly to overseas wholesalers
and retailers and the polyurethane foam to furniture
manufacturers in the PRC. Sales at self-operated retail shops
and sales through retailers in the PRC are transacted either
by cash or credit cards. For sales made at concession
counters, the department stores collect cash from the
ultimate customers and then repay the balance after
deducting the concessionaire commission to the Group.
The credit period granted to department stores ranges from
30 days to 120 days. For sales to wholesalers, retailers and
other manufacturers, the Group generally allows a credit
period ranging from 7 days to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on the
revenue recognition date at the end of each reporting
period.

21.

5 REMERREGE)

AEBEBASENTEBR (REBYTEER
NRBAERANTEEE) ETTEHE - A%E
TRAEIMERMNTENERHERRERREE
o ARAFBENRAELERDHERRELR
RELZEEREBTETERETHHEHMN
ReRERARETRS - MR FEFBEETHH
EME > ABERARRAKKEFPIRERS - I
BREAREASR  AAKEEERE - RTHE
ERRINEESHNTFI0EZE120H - sttt -
TEFMREMEERNHEENS  ARE KK
THREEHNF7HENR -

AT A& FNRR R AR B B 5 FE W TR B AR 8k
#r (REBESHREHARNBAERAHZT) -

2015 2014

2015 2014 £

HK$’000 HK$'000

FaExT FET

Within 30 days 30 B AR 249,521 244,454
31 to 60 days 31E60H 142,112 133,808
61 to 90 days 61290 H 54,232 52,783
91 to 180 days 91 %180 H 20,830 49,513
181 to 365 days 181Z 365 H 29,578 35,126
Over 365 days B8 365 H 24,621 8,264
520,894 523,948

For sales to wholesalers, retailers and other manufacturers,
before accepting any new customer, the Group will
internally assess the potential customers’ credit quality and
define the credit limits based on results from investigation
of historical credit records of these customers.

PRAMER  TERMEMEERNEENS -
REMETAHEL ZA ARESHEETFH
EEEARETARNNE  XERBEAEEEZE
EFBAGECHNATHERRATEERSE -
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BE5 R HEUWFIE (&)

The management of the Group closely monitors the credit
quality of trade receivables and considers the debts that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no history
of default.

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amounts of HK$142,583,000
(2014: HK$185,443,000), which are past due at end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired at the end of each reporting
period.

AEEEEEeTYEREZRIGANERE
= URRERBHNKEHENEEEERIFD
EEEER - BRBHCRRENERFRERS
WEBRKGLEH TP B -

4ABRTEE 4 142,583,000 7T(2014 4F © 185,443,000
B MEWEBD T AREBNE FREWRFUEL
% ZERERFEHRREBE  EAEEE
RUEHREGERE AEETERZSESH
BETAEER -

AT RREREHRNEBHERRENE ZE
WORIR R B DA ©

2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$"000 HKS/000
F& T T
Within 30 days 30 H AN 48,563 19,471
31-60 days 312 60H 51,258 45,263
61-90 days 612 90H 4,452 35,835
91-180 days 91 %180 H 11,565 43,824
181-365 days 1812 365 H 2,124 33,445
Over 365 days H#i@ 365 H 24,621 7,605
142,583 185,443

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIERESE
2015 2014
20154 2014 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T T
Balance at beginning of the year FHEEH 28,316 32,133
Exchange adjustments PE 57 58 %8 (785) 12
Impairment loss recognised BRI EE R 10,804 18,634
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BRI EEE D (995) (18,312
Bad debts written off B R R (9,826) (4,157)
Balance at end of the year FREERH 27,514 28,316
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22. BILLS RECEIVABLES

The amount represents bills receivables on hand which are
not yet due at the end of the reporting period. The
management considers the default rate is low based on
past experience as the Group seldom encounters default on

bills receivables.

The following is an aged analysis of bills receivables based
on their time to maturity as at the respective reporting

22.

BRRE

ZETEARBEHRERBNNFARKETE
RBEEER ARAREEVBIRERERE
BN HEEBRRENERER -

ATRREE2HRABRAIHAREZ27NEKRE
IRARER DT ©

dates.
2015 2014
2015 F 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Within 30 days 30HHA 3,538 1,253
31 to 60 days 312 60H 2,850 255
61 to 90 days 61£90H 3,071 2,237
91 to 180 days 91%E180H 12,822 6,046
181 to 365 days 1812 365 H 204 631
22,485 10,422
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23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/STRUCTURED
BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

126

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2015, pledged bank deposits with
original maturity of more than three months carried
interest at fixed rates ranging from 2.80% to 3.05%
(2014: 2.80% to 3.05%) per annum, respectively. The
bank deposits have been pledged to secure the
Group's general banking facilities and are classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bills payable.

Structured bank deposits

As at 31 December 2015, structured bank deposits
carried interest at variable rates ranging from 1.25% to
2.27% (2014: 1.62% to 3.80%) per annum. These
deposits bear guaranteed minimum interest of 1.25%
per annum, their principals are guaranteed and the
deposits may be withdrawn by the Group at any time.
Interest rates of these structured deposits vary
depending on the movement of market interest rates
and foreign exchange rates at the respective maturity
dates and those features constitute embedded
derivatives. Some of the embedded derivatives are
closely related whereas some are not based on
assessment of their risks and characteristics. For the
non-closely related embedded derivatives, their fair
values are assessed to be not significant during the
reporting period.

Fixed bank deposits

As at 31 December 2015, fixed bank deposits with
original maturity of more than three months carried
interest at fixed rates ranging from 1.60% to 2.27%
(2014: 4.55% to 5.10%) per annum.

Bank balances
As at 31 December 2015, bank balances carried

interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.30%
(2014: 0.01% to 3.30%) per annum.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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23. EEMBIER HEBUBTER 8

THHERAE
(a) BEMBITER

(b)

(c)

(d)

R2015F 1284318 REBHBEA=@A N
ERBEEBRITEIZREEFEET B - 55l
N5 F280% % 3.05% (2014 4F : 2.80% =
3.05%) ° RITIFHEMERR ARG R EEH
—MRIRTTRLYE - DEARBEE - DIFR
TEREREBENZREERER -

RRMERITER

2015412 B 318 » SEMRTHERIZE
FFRAE - NFEF1.25% £ 2.27% (2014
F 1 1.62%E3.80%) ° ZEF KM A RER
BEFME125% EREDHIZRERANEE
AT MER B EREVT R - L EE BT RS
FIR YR B AE R EI B B T 5 ) K R HME[E
RGBT - MZEFEBRRNRANITE
TE - ZFoABmALTETEMBERZY - 36
DRIE  BTHERRMEFEHFTEmE
HIEBERIOARATETLAMS - EQ
FERREHARNWTEHEATEK -

EMRTER

MR2015F 12 A31H  REEB A=A
FHEHRRTERZEENEGTE N TS
F1.60%Z52.27% (20144 : 4.55%%5.10%) °

RITHE
MN2015F12 B 318 @ SRITARUTIEH =R

BN T EF001%E3.30% (2014 4F ¢
0.01% & 3.30%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. EEREMENRE

2015 2014

20155 20144

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Trade payables B S5 EMNFE 200,804 130,691

Deposits received from customers SRS ok e 15,915 6,441

Accrued expenses/provision for expenses JEETF S / B S A 95,822 92,949

Other taxes payable HubhpEEiIE 29,121 17,068
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder  FEfH &5 /K B B A B 3EIE AR AL SR 9

of a subsidiary (Note) FRIA (P ) 6,543 6,543

Others HAith 19,352 22,038

166,753 145,039

Total trade and other payables B o REMBENRIBETE 367,557 275,730

Note: The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

The credit period of trade payables is from 30 to 60 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based

on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period.

Mt - ZRIBREIER 28 RAREREE -

BHRNFTENEEMS30E6H »

UATRRERERRLREREH2IINE S RN

HRIBRRER DT

2015 2014

2015 F 2014 &

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within 30 days 30HMIA 131,749 75,329
31 to 60 days 31£60H 58,446 50,342
61 to 90 days 61290H 4,025 1,120
91 to 180 days 91%180H 2,795 1,568
Over 180 days H#Bim 180 H 3,789 2,332
200,804 130,691
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BIZ 201512 A31 HIEFE
25. BILLS PAYABLES 25. BRREE
All the bills payables of the Group are not yet due at the AEBNAMAERNZENSREHRERDNE -
end of each reporting period. Bills payables as at 31 20155 12 A 31 B EN ZEABR KR RITE
December 2015 were secured by pledged bank deposits of FX8,513,0007%8 7T (2014 4 : 14,786,0007%8 7T ) 1E 1K
HK$8,513,000 (2014: HK$14,786,000). o
The following is an aged analysis of bills payables at the end T RRHERIRZERM B R ENZREER
of the reporting period presented based on bills issue date: BT
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Within 30 days 30HHURA 4,392 34,724
31-60 days 31260 H 11,588 19,014
61-90 days £90H 8,070 12,624
91-180 days 91E180H 35,443 22,057
Over 180 days 88180 H - 3,916
59,493 92,335
26. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS . EIEARITER
2015 2014
2015 % 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade loans B5ER 38,000 21,957
Term loans FHER 122,541 211,059
160,541 233,016
Variable-rate BN R 160,541 165,363
Fixed-rate & E F & — 67,653
160,541 233,016
Carrying amounts repayable* FEEZERmE*
Within one year —FR 130,541 226,266
More than one year, but not more than BE—FEMFUAA
two years 8,000 6,750
More than two years, but not more than BBAFERAFUARN
five years 22,000 =
160,541 233,016
3 The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * FEFIENER AN TEEER A HREE -

out in the loan agreements.
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26. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS

(Continued)

. BIKHRITER(E)

2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Amounts shown under current liabilities: 7 @J & T HIREI IR ¢
Bank borrowings that are repayable BN RS AR —FAEER
within one year from the end of RITERK
the reporting period 130,541 226,266
Bank borrowings that are not repayable BAERRERRET —FAEE
within one year from the end of BEEERERERIERN
the reporting period but contain RITHEX
a repayable on demand clause 30,000 6,750
160,541 233,016

Variable-rate bank borrowings bear interest with reference
to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and Prime rate plus a
specific margin of the relevant banks.

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the corresponding group entity which it relates:

FEMERRITRAEBBRITREFE RAERER

TTEV R BB R I E MBE R B

Tﬁllﬁer/\fETﬂﬁ R SR CAMS RSB ER

Ab4b
HKE

BIASNEEEDIE)

2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
us$ e 38,750 106,403
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal REBENBRERNEGEZERTHNE)HE S
to contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings, are AT -
as follows:
2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
Effective interest rates (per annum): BERFERNE

Variable-rate borrowings
Fixed-rate borrowings

1.45%-6.90%
N/A T iE A

1.75%6.44%
2.67%-3.29%
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26. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS 26. EIWBITMHER(E)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary had provided a guarantee to a bank to secure the
bank facilities granted to that subsidiary to the extent of
RMB33,000,000, out of which RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,888,000) (2014: RMB38,500,000, out of
which RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

R2015F 12 A31H - —E KB QB FEIE MR
RERITIRERER - WEUSRITEZMB QA
¥ PR A AR % 33,000,000 THIRITRLE - B H
=8 A R ¥ 14,000,000 7T (#8& 7 49 16,888,000
) (20144 © AR ¥ 38,500,000 EFEH
A A R #12,000,0007C ( 18 & R 49 15,156,000 %

HK$15,156,000)), were utilised. TT)) °
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BR7<
Number
of shares Amount
3B x|
HK$'000
FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each G011 B TR TR
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December R20145F1 A1 BNUAK2014F K&
2014 and 2015 201512 A31H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Number
of shares HK$'000
G E FHET
Issued and fully paid: EEITRERE
At 1 January 2014 7®2014F1H1H 50,000 5
Capitalisation issue (Note a) BT (MEa) 1,499,950,000 149,995
Issue of shares on global offering (Note b)  FL 2 EREEE 21T (MiFEb) 150,000,000 15,000
Issue of shares upon exercise of share ITIF B IR 1R 31T
options 2,000 -
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12 A31 H 1,650,002,000 165,000
Issue of shares upon placement (Note ¢)  BR&ERFEITIG (B c) 100,000,000 10,000
At 31 December 2015 R 2015F 12 A31 H 1,750,002,000 175,000
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

28.

Notes:

(a)

On 4 March 2014, the Company has approved the issuance of
1,499,950,000 shares standing to the credit of the share premium
of the Company conditional on the share premium account of
the Company being credited as a result of the global offering of
the shares of the Company (“Capitalisation Issue”). The
Capitalisation Issue was completed on 9 July 2014.

On 10 July 2014, the shares of the Company were listed on the
Stock Exchange. 150,000,000 ordinary shares at an offer price of
HK$1.06 each (“Offer Price”) have been issued to investors
through global offering with a net proceeds of approximately
HK$127,120,000.

On 15 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
to place up to 100,000,000 new shares to Sinomax Enterprises at
HK$1.06 per share. On 21 May 2015, 100,000,000 new shares
were issued and allotted upon the placement. The net proceeds
are to be used to fund the Group's business expansion in the US
and general working capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(0]

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 13 December 2013, a share option scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the eligible participants under the
scheme have or may have made to the Company.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-
time employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, will contribute or have
contributed to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee
shall pay HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration
for the grant.

27. BRA&(48)

Bz

28.

0]

R2014F 3848  RARBBAARBRGHEE
R 2517 1,499,950,000 i AR 17 - 1/ AN 2 Al B AR 9
HEERERARRKRMNEHRBE ([ERBIT)) Mk
SR c BALEITN 201457 9B R °

R2014F7 108 » R RFIRMREERZ T Lo
150,000,000 A% & i@ A% B iZ B EE TR 1.06 78 7T ([ 8
EE| BRERFERREERIT  IBRFIEFED
127,120,000 7T °

HR2015F 58158 » KRR —HEEH:E - A
BREMIETHNERANEHEBELERESE
100,000,000 B&L#TA% © 722015465 A 21 B » 100,000,000
BRIFBAREERBFITRESR - IBREFEBEERA
REEMEREBRR L —BREEENREES -

BRESE

BRDRBERBRETS

R2013F 12 A13 8 » N2 &) J% 55 4 B A%
EFE(BRAMBENBRESTSD -5
R AR E R ERT 8 A —ER (O BN ET
g EESERRBAUZTEETHNGERKS
BHEHARRBCIEL KA REEEL R ER ©

RERZ2EEBEARRREE([IMEARR
MEAEBRBES TTRASLSEB
B (BREHIT  FITRBIUIEMITES) -
UEARREERARBEUEHAAQTA
R,/ SR EAEAAIF B 1 BE L B BV (E eI e
& BF - B - K2 NER -

RERERER - ARABRARRA R A
BT RERBENNKE -
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

132

0]

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

On 13 December 2013, the Company has authorised
to grant to 140 eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of 34,918,000 shares under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme. In February 2014, the Company
granted share options to 137 eligible participants to
subscribe for an aggregate of 34,903,000 shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular share option offered under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be a price representing
30% discount to the Offer Price.

The share options granted to each grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be vested equally
in five tranches commencing on 10 July 2014, the first
date on which dealings in the shares of the Company
commenced on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Date”) and on each of the first, second, third and
fourth anniversary of the Listing Date. The grantees to
whom a share option has been granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise
the share option any time after the share option has
been vested but in any event on or before the date
falling on the fifth anniversary of the Listing Date. The
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are not transferable and share options
not exercised within the exercise period will lapse and
cease to be of further effect.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme expired on 10 July
2014 and will cease to have effect after 10 July 2014.
Share options granted prior to the expiration of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised
at that time shall continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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28. BKRRESHE (E)

(i)

BRDRBEMBRETS ()

MR2013F 12 A13H * R ARIERERHX
NAESHERETEIE TN 140268 K2
BE 25 R A 2L AT 7288 34,918,000 ML A% 19 /O B8
fe#E - M2014F2H  RARIMIITEZEE
X2 B E R A 0] 3R 34,903,000 f% f% 9
KRB AR -
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FEBBAES R 2B 2 REESHENE
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 28. BKRRESHE (E)
(i)  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) BEBXRDABEABRETSE (8
The following tables disclose details of movements of TREBREBEEXAREENBERESTSIE
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share HE RS AR B 15
Option Scheme:
Granted at  Lapsed during Exercised  Outstandingat  Lapsed during  Outstanding at
Options Vesting period 10.02.2014 theyear  during the year 31.12.2014 the year 31.12.2015
#2014 5 R2014 5 #2015 %
2A10H 128318 12A31H
BRE BEH B REREN RERTTE i RATE RERKH i RITE
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (a))
(F1E @) (Bt (b)) (P ()
Directors
BF
Tranche 1 10.02.2014-10.07.2014 4,045,240 - - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
Fit 014F28108%
2014%7 /108
Tranche 2 10.02.2014-10.07.2015 4,045,240 - - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
it 01452810B%
2015574108
Tranche 3 10.02.2014-10.07.2016 4,045,240 - - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
Ess 0145281082
2016%7A108
Tranche 4 10.02.2014-10.07.2017 4,045,240 - - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
EUtEid 01452H10B%
2017%7 A 108
Tranche 5 10.02.2014-10.07.2018 4,045,240 - - 4,045,240 - 4,045,240
ERiEi 0145281082
201874108
20,226,200 - - 20,226,200 - 20,226,200
Senior management
EREERE
Tranche 1 10.02.2014-10.07.2014 1,037,560 (30,000) - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
it 2014F28108%
201447 A108
Tranche 2 10.02.2014-10.07.2015 1,037,560 (30,000) - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
Eiid 014F25108%
2015%7A10A8
Tranche 3 10.02.2014-10.07.2016 1,037,560 (30,000) - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
E=Ht 01452 A10BE
2016%7 108
Tranche 4 10.02.2014-10.07.2017 1,037,560 (30,000 - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
it 014251082
2017%7A10A8
Tranche 5 10.02.2014-10.07.2018 1,037,560 (30,000) - 1,007,560 - 1,007,560
Fnit 01452 710BE
2018%7 A 108
5,187,800 (150,000) - 5,037,800 - 5,037,800
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 28. WBMRAETEI ()
()  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) BXRDBABEABRETSE (8
Granted at  Lapsed during Exercised  Outstandingat  Lapsed during  Outstanding at
Options Vesting period 10.02.2014 theyear  during the year 31.12.2014 the year 31.12.2015
R2014%F R2014 5 R20155F
2A10H 12A31H 12A31H
BRE BEA B RERKN REATE i RAT RERKN 8 RATE
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (a))
(Fif7E (a)) (G GEIR)
Employees
&
Tranche 1 10.02.2014-10.07.2014 1,897,800 (56,000) (2,000) 1,839,800 (123,000) 1,716,800
Fitt 2014%28108%
20144674108
Tranche 2 10.02.2014-10.07.2015 1,897,800 (56,000) - 1,841,800 (123,000) 1,718,800
EH 014527108 E
20157 A 108
Tranche 3 10.02.2014-10.07.2016 1,897,800 (56,000) - 1,841,800 (123,000) 1,718,800
EEid 2014%28108%
2016%7A108
Tranche 4 10.02.2014-10.07.2017 1,897,800 (56,000) - 1,841,800 (123,000) 1,718,800
FOH 014527108 %
2017%7A108
Tranche 5 10.02.2014-10.07.2018 1,897,800 (56,000) - 1,841,800 (123,000) 1,718,800
ERiEi 2014%28108%
201847 A 108
9,489,000 (280,000) (2,000) 9,207,000 (615,000) 8,592,000
34,903,000 (430,000) (2,000) 34,471,000 (615,000) 33,856,000
Exercisable at the end of the reporting period 6,892,600 13,541,200
RRERRA TR
Notes: 5T
(a) 10 (2014: 16) eligible participants, who have been granted (a) 102 (20144F : 165 ) ERERENAEERZR
share options have ceased to become eligible participants HERNRIHERARETBREEKRZEE
upon termination of employment and the said share i EREAREE B ERRR -
options have automatically lapsed.
(b)  The closing price of the Company's shares immediately b) REZE2014F12A3BIEFE - KAQFRRKRG
before the date on which the share options are exercised REEREREETE B BRI TE R 1.0678

during the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$1.06. 75 ©
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(i)  The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-

28. MBI AERTE ()
()  ERDMBEMNBRES S ()

RIBERAFEERBRES SR LB

IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: MEFEIBIT ¢

Number of Fair value

share options Exercise per share

Date of grant granted Exercise period price option

SHERE

BREBH REBREHE T£H 1@ ZDYHE

HK$ HK$

iy AT

Tranche 1 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2014-10.07.2019 074 041
Eaif 20145628108 201457 R10BZ 201967 108

Tranche 2 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2015-10.07.2019 074 043
S 2014528108 01557 A10BZ 201957 A 108

Tranche 3 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2016-10.07.2019 074 045
E=H 2014528108 016%7 A108Z 201957 A 108

Tranche 4 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2017-10.07.2019 074 047
EiEi 2014F2A108 2017F7A10BZ 201947 A10H

Tranche 5 10.02.2014 6,980,600 10.07.2018-10.07.2019 074 048
Fa 201452 R108 201857 A10BZ2019%7 A10H

The fair value of the share options at the grant date,
were calculated using the Binomial Model is

approximately HK$15,662,000.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Grant date 10 February 2014
Number of share options 34,903,000
Share price HK$0.96
Risk-free rate 0.46%
Expected volatility 47.82%
Time-to-maturity 5.41 years

The risk-free rate is based on Hong Kong Dollar

Sovereign Curve obtained from Bloomberg.

Expected volatility was determined by using five
comparable companies’ historical volatility quoted by
Bloomberg. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioral considerations.

EREARLBHFERA-_ENREAFEZA
A A#)15,662,000 4 7T

ZRAWBABEIT

=t 20142 A10H
fERRESE 34,903,000
A& (& 0.96%8 7T
£ 3 P ) 0.46%
TEHR i@ 47.82%
5 5 B 5 i 5414

RN R T RIR I PR T E R R AR
EER R TR B AT AR AT & LA A
ML IREMERE - BAMANERSHE
REEEBHNREGETARE - AR
HiE - TERVIMTAEERENTE -
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

136

0]

(i)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The Group recognised a total expense of
HK$3,808,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: HK$7,431,000) in relation to the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted by the Company.

The number of share options granted expected to
vest has been reduced to reflect historical experience
of forfeiture of 81% (2014: 86%) of options granted
prior to completion of vesting period and accordingly
the share option expense has been adjusted. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in the profit
and loss over the remaining vesting period, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the directors’ best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 4 March 2014, a share option scheme was
conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the
Company (the “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentive or reward to the eligible
participants with an opportunity to acquire the equity
interests in the Company, for their contributions to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interest of the
Group or for such other purposes as the board of
directors of the Company may approve from time to
time, linking their interests with the interests of the
Group and thereby attracting and encouraging those
parties to work better for the interests of the Group.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

28. BKRRESHE (E)

(i)

(i)

BRDRBEMBRETS ()

AEBEFRARRFBRENE N AHABERE
RAEETEIRE Z2015F 12 A3 B IEFERE
R #E R 3,808,000 7% 7T (2014 4F : 7,431,000
VETT) e

PR TRERE 2 EMTTRBE LR D It
RRBGBE LR T R ERIERLT81%(2014
F 1 86%) AT BT AL AT B @ o F It
BRAEMXCEAR - NBREHMK - A5E
S EYEMRRSTTEIBIESRE 2
et - BRTRKMGE (0F) 2 BERRE
BRIz Bam AR - WHBBRERGBELR
FEFHE -

—IHR AR R SR AT A8 - FIR
SEBIRET B ATE B RERDHE
BB BIERT - BRREERE TR
B2 TREE =8 -

BRARBRERBRETS

R2014F3H48 - RARRRB FITFHRH
ERERT 2 ((BRAMBERBRES]) -

BRARBERBIRE S S ERAEMA
SEANSHARREFTE TNRAL/ENEMH
MMEL BERMEFES INA BIRSEER
H—EERARRRENEES - FRYHEE
Y RBN S B2 R - DAAS 1R S 0 2 SR A ER [ Y
M RE—E EhRs kB EEsT
RANEENMEENE N TIE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(i)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-
time employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the
directors of the Company, will contribute or have
contributed to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.

The subscription price of a share of the Company in
respect of any particular share option granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be such price
as the directors of the Company in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price shall at
least be the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities; (i) the average
of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

28. BRERTEI(E)

(i)

BRLHBRERBRETS ()

BERSEEREARAREAMNERE
MEMERRBES  (TRABRKSRBE
B (BREHIT  FRIT B IFRITES) -
URARBREE2RR/HEREHARF
K/ S E KB A BE L BB AR -
BFE - HAER - RERERA -

RIBERAFZEERBIES SR ENER
i TE BB B PSS X B B £ SR B (B S
ARREZLENBEE - ETEER TS
BeE  (\REEABIAEARERAT
AARRRMD U E - TR B AR
RAEERFNEER (N ZRREERA
hAEXABIAEHRERMRARFR
T ERFEE - Rii) AR BBRMOEE
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

138

(i)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme and under any other share
option schemes of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue at the Listing Date (without taking
into account any shares that may be issued upon the
full exercise of the options granted pursuant to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme), being 165,000,000
Shares ("Option Limit"). Options which have lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of
the Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Option Limit. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company, the Company
may refresh the Option Limit at any time provided that
(i) the Option Limit as refreshed does not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
the approval by the shareholders of the Company;
and (i) the options previously granted (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the
provisions of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme or
exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the Option Limit as refreshed. The
Company may also, with the approval of the
shareholders of the Company, grant share options in
respect of shares of the Company in excess of the
Option Limit (as refreshed from time to time) to
eligible participants specifically identified by the
Company before such approval is sought.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company from
time to time. No share options shall be granted under
any schemes of the Company (including the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit
being exceeded.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(i)

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Group (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer
to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of offer to grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

In addition, any grant of share options to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates is
required to be approved by the independent non-
executive directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is proposed to be an option
holder). If the Company proposes to grant share
options to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive director of the Company
or their respective associates which will result in the
number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted and to
be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of offer of such
grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of offer of each grant, such further grant of share
options will be subject to, in addition to the approval
of the independent non-executive directors, the
approval of shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

No share option under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme has been granted since its adoption.

28. BKRRESHE (E)

(i)

BERLHBERBRETS ()

BRARAEREZREREE BOER12
B A BEETEREE R ARESRERE
at Bl R AN BT EL A BB AR AT I T IR B
B (BREITERERITES) MEETR
HERTHRNAYK  THEBHERNEK
HEBRARBDEITRNDMI% - RITRE
HRE 1% EROBREAERRAE L
ERRALAE ©

BN EF - ZRTRABREZRRKRK
SEBRNBBA TR TEMBRE A%
SEIFRNTES(TEREEZEREREK
REOEMBELIFRTES) HILE - AR
BIEERAARA T BRRAEMELIFNTT
EERRSEENBEALTRLBRE M
EITREER M RERERE(BRDTE
B R K AR ITEE B BB ) & 5 B BN E
ERHFREBEH(2EZA) L1218 A HRHE
ERITRSBRITRONEE AFHEBBARF]
BEEITRMNN0.1% : MREBESREE L B
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BUE2015F 12 H 31 HIFFE
29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. EXEKREE
The management of the Group manages its capital to AEBEEEBAMRAEEE T ERENESR
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as BREMEBBEEAR  UEBEEHEERZMH
a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders RS&ETE AREFRHEARR - AEE2
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. FERERAEEHEF AR -
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of unsecured REEERERBIEMN T 26 TR R MEIRRTT
bank borrowings disclosed in note 26, cash and cash BH - -BeMBELEEYRANRNRES AESLE
equivalents, and equity attributable to the owners of the W= (BREBRA - FERRERER) -
Company, comprising share capital, reserves and retained
profits.
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure TEEEEETHERNERNEE - FAEHNZ—
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the management B AEEEEEEEESKAREZEES
of the Group considers the cost of capital and the risks FEREMER  WHEUEE TS LR EE AR
associated with each class of capital, and takes appropriate BEL FiE o
actions to balance its overall capital structure.
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. @@T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) ERMIEMNDE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Financial assets cREE
Loans and receivables R R EWRIA
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREAZNBELEEY) 964,339 843,592
Financial liabilities cRaE
Amortised cost B SRR 446,733 481,220
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, structured bank deposits, fixed bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bills payables and bank borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with certain of
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits and bank
borrowings (see notes 23 and 26 for details of these
balances) due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate. The Group currently does not
have a policy on hedging interest rate risk. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should
the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to the fixed-rate bank deposits and
bank borrowings (see notes 23 and 26 for details of
these balances). However, management considers the
fair value interest rate risk is insignificant as they are
relatively short-term.

30. €MIE(E)

(b)

MHEAREENBERRBER

AEENTIESMIABRE S REMEBK
PR - BWEE - CHEWRITER SRk
RITER - EHRITHER - |RITEBRER
T BHNEMENTIR - EBANRENRT
AR ZEL R T EMNFBERERMER
B ITXBEIEBEZEE TSR TANAR
KRRt EREBHBER - ERESER
NEFEZ B R - ARELR NS RO R EUE

Ecyi

5
VRIS

7R ER B R ER 1T T 45 ) SR 1 ¥ B R 4R
TTERRIRITER (REERHFERME
23N 26)EERIRMEN KRR - AEERB
A X0 4 05 E S M R AR - A B
BESHEMNRER EARER  HEE
HMEANERR -

A& B Tt I E M R SRT T R S SR T AR R (R%
SEAROFIE R 23 & 26) MR A FEF
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

142

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
deposits and bank borrowings. The analysis is
prepared assuming that the amount of assets and
liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. 25 basis
point and 50 basis point increase or decrease
represent the management’s assessment of the
reasonable possible change in interest rates of bank
deposits and bank borrowings, respectively. Based on
the sensitivity analysis, the directors of the Company
consider that the impact to profit or loss for the
respective years is insignificant.

Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a formal foreign currency hedging
policy but will use foreign currency contracts to hedge
against the risk when it is foreseen to be significant.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

30. &I A (&)

(b) HBEBREENEFERBEE(F)

5 ()
FE R ()
BURE DT

FRESMDHERARERZEF R IRITHE
R IRTITRE A EER RO A R R BR T AES © 4R
HEBAIMBEBRRNBEPRRKEENE
ERABESENEFRNHREE - 25@EFH
RSOEEFMIBRAFRO N AEEREY
RITERBIRITIERMN R A E A e E B K
A o RIBGRENT - ARBAEER LY
BFERENTEEM -

SRR

RATETHEB R R AINE 1T E RIK
B SAEEREEINERER - AEBRFYL
BB EASNESIPEEK - EERINEAL
A AR MERER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
and monetary liabilities (excluding inter-company
balances) denominated in currencies other than the
respective group entities’ functional currencies at the
end of each reporting period are as follows:

30. €MIE(E)

(b) HIEBREENEFEREE(F)

5 E e ()
SNEE B (48)
AEERZHRERR  UEEE BRI

BRI EEHENEEEEREKAE
(TEEEEARAREAR) NEEENT

Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2015 2014 2015 2014
20154 20144 2015 20145
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT FET FHIT
HKS$ BT 10,444 22,213 = =
RMB AR 51,840 36,065 - -
Us$ =TT 104,384 70,316 56,507 145,471
In addition, inter-company balances denominated in SN - REMERR - AREBEBRHINEE

foreign currencies other than the respective group

B AN SN I (B ) SR 8 1 A A4S R 0

entities’ functional currencies at the end of each N
reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015 % 20144 2015 & 2014 F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
HK$ BT - 68,164 202,368 221,546
RMB AR 63 - - 97,378
us$ ETT 597,988 431,771 201,054 =
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

30. &I A (&)

(b) HBEBREENEFERBEE(F)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Subsidiaries of the Company carry out most of the
transactions denominated in HK$, RMB or US$ and
the Group is mainly exposed to the foreign exchange
risk arising from these currencies when they are
different from the functional currencies of the
respective group entities. Under the pegged
exchange rate system, the financial impact arising
from changes in exchange rates between HK$ and
US$ is not expected to be significant and therefore,
the corresponding sensitivity analysis is not prepared.

The sensitivity analysis below details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in HK$, RMB
or US$ against the functional currencies of the
respective group entities. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign currency
rate. A positive (negative) number indicates an
increase (decrease) in pre-tax profit for the year when
HK$, RMB or US$ strengthen 5% against the functional
currencies of the respective group entities. For a 5%
weakening of HK$, RMB or US$, there would be an
equal but opposite impact on the pre-tax profit for the
year.

5 ()
I ()
BURE DT

AATHIKIE R RETHRARE DX 5 TIA
B ARERERE  EZFEERES
RERBERNINGEEER  AREXTER
bt W B 1N R B o AR R B 5 T K
B EREBTRETEREHELNOY
R EALTEKX - B I 5 4R B FE H BUR
BT

THGRESMFRAEELET - AR
HETAREEREERNIEEEHELR
BE5%MERRE - FTAS%BREELL R REE
EBESNEER IR R FRRTE - E(B)
FRTAET - ARBEETHANHEEEERE
BV Th BE & W (B 5% B 4 1A B B4 A1 45 00
OBid) = BT - ARBHETTHEREEE
BRI EERESSME - FRREA
EAR B EEERRNOTE -

2015 2014

2015 F 2014 £

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

HK$ ABIT (9,596) (6,558)
RMB AR#E 2,595 (3,066)
Us$ e 21,805 (3,174)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of the reporting period is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures over the customers to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the management of the
Group considers that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The management of the Group considers that the
Group's credit risk in relation to sales made at
concession counters is limited as the Group only
operates concession counters in leading and
reputable department stores. For international and
export sales, the customers are mainly leading
retailers in the US and the credit risk is not expected
to be significant by the management. For other
customers, the management closely monitors
settlement status and regularly updates their credit
profile to ensure that the Group's credit risk is
properly managed. For customers in the PRC, the
Group would accept bills as alternate settlement
means to reduce the exposure of credit risk.

30. @I A(E)

(b)

MEEREEN B RRBCR (H)
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation
to its trade receivables as follows:

30. &I A (&)

(b) HBEBREENEFERBEE(F)

=&k (F)

RAEENE HRKFIAENE - AEEHER
MEREERRIT

2015 2014
20154 2014 5
Amount due from the largest debtorasa  [EUNER K EM A FIE(RE 5 FE WK
percentage to total trade receivables HRFENADL 17% 22%
Total amounts due from the five largest FER A RNEBARBEBEEESE
debtors as a percentage to total trade W TBARFE B 7 Bt
receivables 34% 40%
The Group keeps exploring new customers to diversify REETHBBHEZS,  NEELREEAE

and strengthen its customer base to reduce the
concentration of credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds, pledged, structured
and fixed banks deposits is limited because majority
of the counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating

30. €MIE(E)

(b) HIEBREENEFEREE(F)

mBEZEE (H)

TREFIMNERAGRERE WA SR
FEFE - REEIRE SR RIZRE HRAOF

rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest EEE o
rate at the end of the reporting period.
Liquidity tables REBE T
Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than 1-3 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months Tyear  cash flows amounts
REXY FERRE
mEFSRE  SR-BA 1Z3fA 3MEAZE1E  REHE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THT THT THT THT THT
At 31 December 2015 20155124318
Trade and other payables B o NEMEMNFA - 150,344 71,868 4,487 226,699 226,699
Bills payables ARES: - 14,200 20,038 25,255 59,493 59,493
Bank borrowings RITIEK
— variable-rate — FEFx 243 143,743 179 17,298 161,220 160,541
308,287 92,085 47,040 447,412 446,733
At 31 December 2014 20145124318
Trade and other payables Lo RAMERNFUR - 102,278 53,275 316 155,869 155,869
Bills payables NES - 25480 27,614 39,241 92,335 92,335
Bank borrowings RITEH
— variable-rate —EBHE 262 150,287 8955 6,468 165,710 165,363
— fixed-rate —EEH= 294 158 28,766 39,554 68,478 67,653
278,203 118,610 85,579 482,392 481,220

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

i35 B ) SR B SRR 3R 45 AR B E MO R R A2
SR BB IEATE S B A BRI BRI
TENSENEED -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

148

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause while
the scheduled repayment dates are over one month
are also included in the “on demand or less than 1
month” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31 December 2015, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$42,660,000 (2014: HK$72,386,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors of
the Company do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment.

The directors of the Company believe that the
principal and interest will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$44,575,000.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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BIE 201512 A 31 HIFF/E
31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 31. WiEs—EKME A A
On 23 January 2015, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of MR2015%F 18238 » A REIMEE2ENE AR H
the Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the ERARAF(EBR]) (—HREBIMEKIHE
“Acquisition Agreement”) with Mil-ton Company Limited RAG WHAEE —RZREEALTZERR) M
("Mil-ton”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with B gn((KE]) (BYFE=7  —HRAXRT
limited liability and wholly owned by a connected person of MR BRAR - ARMDRREREBFSZR S L
the Group, and Chori Co., Ltd. (“Chori”), an independent m)RI W EE R ([ WEHE ) - REWE RS -
third party incorporated in Japan with limited liability whose REB B G R E WS R E R RIEE D RIH §H
shares are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc.. AEHE LEBMAEEERA(TLEEBBXDD
Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Group 60% 12 40% & 4 o LB K A —BRH .)ﬁiﬁ']
conditionally agreed to acquire and Mil-ton and Chori BRAR WEEBRENT  AERBEERS
conditionally agreed to sell respectively 60% and 40% of the YR o H&Eﬁfﬁiﬁ{fﬁ)\ﬁﬁgm,OO0,000E(*E?-?
equity interest in Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane Co. Ltd*. R 49 26,519,0007% 7t ) K& A K # 14,000,000 7T ( 8
(B X84 A R 2 7)) (“Shanghai Luen Tai”), a company B R 4917,679,0007 70) o BIER FE R R EIE -
established in the PRC with limited liability, and principally WEEEIA TR 2015F 4 A1 B5ER °
engage in the processing, manufacturing and sales of
polyurethane foam. The cash consideration of the
acquisition was RMB21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,519,000) and RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,679,000), to Mil-ton and Chori,
respectively. The acquisition was completed on 1 April 2015.
Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,014,000 W EEAB RN 51,014,000 8 T EIER R - B
related to the acquisition had been excluded from the cost B AP R - WREFRBRARAX - 5TA
of acquisition and had been recognised as an expense in e kEMmEERERAN HaFAS B -
the current year, included in "other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of RIWEBRHEWENEEREREIZMABENT
acquisition are as follows:
HK$'000
FHAT
Property, plant and equipment Mm% -~ BB KRR 6,884
Inventories T8 26,211
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAb Y KRIA 67,027
Bank balances and cash RITHESBR LR 1,012
Trade and other payables B 5 KA MR I (29.873)
Taxation payable FERTRIE (544)
Bank borrowings HRITHENK (26,519)
44,198
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BUE2015F 12 H 31 HIFFE
31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)  31. Wi — KB AR (&)
The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of HERHMEKREREBREHNATES
acquisition amounted to HK$67,027,000. The gross 67 027,0008 T ° E/\Hﬂlﬁﬁaﬁﬁ EREENZER
contractual amounts of those trade and other receivables R E At R IA R 86 K92 ¥8/570,489,000 7T °
acquired amounted to HK$70,489,000 at the date of FEEHEZAREMNEOREeRENKER BN RE
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the 543,462,000 57T ©
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
amounted to HK$3,462,000.
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WBEENEE:
HK$'000
FHAT
Consideration transferred EERE 44,198
Less: Net assets acquired at provisional fair value B R ATEREZFEE (44,198)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W E AR E -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEENRERHIFE
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration HWEREB 44,198
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITEBREIR S (1,012)
43,186

150

Included in the profit for the year is HK$23,810,000
generated by Shanghai Luen Tai since acquisition. Revenue
for the year includes HK$200,389,000 generated from
Shanghai Luen Tai.

Had the acquisition of Shanghai Luen Tai been completed
on 1 January 2015, the total amount of revenue of the
Group for the year would have been HK$2,913,939,000, and
the amount of the profit for the year would have been
HK$178,829,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2015, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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32. OPERATING LEASES 32. KREHEE
The Group as a lessee AEBEREBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REEHIR - REB AR T ] BiE A& E T & &I
commitments for future minimum lease payments under ARGZERERE  ZETABECESHENE
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: HERMT
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Within one year —F R 58,671 39,367
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZELF(BEEREMF) 121,590 20,915
Over five years Bl ASF 83,922 =
264,183 60,282
Included above are the following lease payments committed A EFrE A THRAARIRZW B A RIAENTE
to a fellow subsidiary of the Company: EHIE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Within one year —FNR 18,963 10,540
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_EZELF(BEEEMF) 37.926 -
56,889 10,540

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for the retail stores, offices, factory, staff quarters and
warehouses. Leases are negotiated for initial terms ranging
from one to ten years.

Certain retail stores include payment obligations with rental
varied with gross revenue. The additional rental payable
(contingent rents) is determined generally by applying pre-
determined percentages to actual sales less the basic
rentals of the respective leases. It is not possible to estimate
in advance the amount of such contingent rents payable.

REHEERREAEERTES WAE  BE -
BETIEEkEENENES HOFHHEER
BT N F—2tFILF-

HTZEEARBRKRAMMZTEESH R
REME - BINENEES (HREE) —RAERH
SENBETAEDLREZTARONEAREERE
BT A RARN RS E AT -
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32. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

33.

152

The Group as lessor

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

32.

ReRaE(E)
AEBBHAA

RERER  NEEHL T ARKKEEEFKR
HEPRIVAR :

2015 2014

2015 20144

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&E T T

Within one year —FNR 6,274 3,837
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EZELF(BEEREMF) 6,307 5,414
Over five years BilEAF 1,719 3,710
14,300 12,961

The amounts represent rentals receivable by the Group for
the leasing of unutilised factories and warehouses classified
as investment properties. Leases are generally negotiated
for initial terms ranging from a few months to three years.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme") for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at a rate of 5% specified in the
rules, but subject to a cap. The only obligation of the Group
with respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in future years.

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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EIZ 201512 31 HIEFE
34. COMMITMENTS 34, AIE
2015 2014
2015 % 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Capital expenditure in respect of property, BT BERAGA VB RERBED
plant and equipment contracted for but not % - iE KRB E AR
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 107,978 7,075
35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 35. BEEHIHE
In addition to the transactions, balances and commitments MR EITBRMERFTBENR S « ek KA -
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial REBDEIY MNEERRZS -
statements, the Group had entered into the following
related party transactions:
Relationship with the Group Nature of transactions 2015 2014
EARKERE REMHE 20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Fellow subsidiary of the Company Rental expenses 10,280 10,468
ZAN/NEEEOI SNy YNG] Gitkalaba
In addition, certain trademarks owned by fellow subsidiaries AN KEBERMEFEANEBFERE TARA
of the Company were used by the Group free of charge RAEMBEAREEEE -
during both years.
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEABNEE
The remuneration of directors and other member of key EEREMTEERERERHEHOFTMOAT :
management during the reporting period was as follows:
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Salaries and allowances e KoEAh 10,692 10,408
Performance related incentive payments EHRRNES 3,126 3,504
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIKER B 201 135
Share based payment expense IR AT 2,274 5,379
16,293 19,426

BREEEERAT
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BZ2015F 12531 HIEFE
36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 36. ARFIMBLAFE
COMPANY
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: AATIHBARSENT
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of share/
operations/ share capital/ registered registered/ quota capital
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/ quota capital held by the Group Principal activities
EMAL EE/ BEARARRE/ AEBRERS/ZRER/
WEAR R RuBH HMEL/ BEER EFERNLH TEXH
At 31 December
R12A31H
2015 2014
20155 145
Directly owned
ERBF
Treasure Range Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$27 100% 100%  Investment holding
% ERR2EL AR
Indirectly owned
ExER
Ascension International Development Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
SEERERERAR RERAHS ERRIET AR
Fullelite Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEBRAR KEBRIRE EBR10ET REZER
Year Prosper Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
BREERAR KBRAHES LERI10EXT REER
Wonderful Health Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
KEBRIRE EBR10ET REZER
Trade Sincere Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$100 85% 85%  Investment holding
EHERRA KBRAHES LER100%T REER
Sinomax International Investment Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision
PRERRREERAT ERRLHS LERI10ET of treasury management services
RESRRRES EERRS
Sinomax Health & Household Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Retail and wholesale of health and
Products Limited &% (2014: HK$10) household products
BRRRREERARARAA 808 1,000,000/ 7T TERMEREZEER
(2014% : 10%7T)
Sinomax International Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% 100%  Trading of health and
ERRERESERAR i LB 1000087 household products
BEREEMEER
Dongguan Sinohome Limited* (Note 3) The PRC Registered capital HK$32,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of health
FrBaRERRBRAR (M3) H FHAE A 32,000,000 7T and household products
ERHEREREER
Shanghai Luen Tai Polyurethane Co., Ltd* The PRC Registered capital RMB35,000,000 100% - Processing, manufacturing and
(Notes 1 and 3) H FHAE AR AR 35,000,000 70 sales of polyurethane foam
LEBABRERAR (3 1K3) NI SERHERK
Sinohome Household Products (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Retail and wholesale of health and
Limited* (Note 3) f HK$1,000,000 household products
BHRE AR R ERRA (H33) &7 1,000,000 7T TERMEREREER

154 SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid

36.

Proportion of share/

operations/ share capital/ registered registered/ quota capital
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/ quota capital held by the Group Principal activities
SR g/ BRARBERE/ FEEBREREEMES/
HEARAR RUbH FMELR/ BEELR BEERNLH TEEER
At 31 December
M12A318
2015 2014
2015F 0145
Indirectly owned (continued)
FEHER (8)
Sinomax (Zhejiang) Polyurethane The PRC Registered capital US$30,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of health and
Household Products Limited* (Note 3) & (2014: US$24,180,000) household products
ERACHL) ZaEXERRERAR (M:E3) FEfHE 430,000,000 %7 HERHERRREER
(20144 : 24,180,000% )
Sinomax Kuka (Zhejiang) Foam Co. Limited* The PRC Registered capital US$2,100,000 51% 51% Manufacture and sale of foam
("Sinomax Kuka") (Note 4) F & A 2,100,000 7T RERHEERAK
HIERBEFRSRARAR
([2HBER])(154)
Haining Sinomax Trading Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital RMB1,000,000 51% 51% Trading of foam
("Haining Sinomax”) (Note 4) hE AR AR1,000,0007T HREE
BEERBREHBRAR(FREHA))
(Mizka)
Sinomax Macao Commercial Offshore Limited Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 100% 100% Wholesale of health and
PREAMRREERBERLA bl Bege & AR P 100,000 7T household products
HERRXEER
Sinomax USA, Inc. The US 100 shares of common 100% 100% Wholesale of health and
E3E stock of no par value household products
100 R EEELBR BERRFEER
Sinomax East, Inc. (Note 2) (Fi7£2) The US 1 share of common stock 100% - Manufacture of health
£ with no par value and household products
1RERBLAER WERRFEER
Notes: Bz
(1) This subsidiary was acquired in April 2015. () ZMBARR2015F 4 AR -
(2)  This subsidiary was incorporated in September 2015. (2 ZMBARRN2015F9 AL ©
(€)) The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign (3) ZEREIAINEBEE S ER A -
owned enterprises.
(4)  The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign equity @)  FZERQAARINEBERERA M -

joint venture.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt
securities outstanding at the end of or any time during the
reporting periods.

* English translated name is for identification purpose only.

BB AR BB A AR RS BR S E A (A B

BEFMKREERHES -
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37. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

156

The amounts disclosed below represent the s

consolidated financial information of Sinomax Kuka and its

wholly owned subsidiary, Haining Sinomax,

interests of Sinomax Kuka represent the majority

37. ERFERER

ummarised UTHENSBEAE N MRERARNRGRRZAE -

PHREEREEEWNB AR BEERENRE

before the IREMBEER ERBEBERNIEERERALE
elimination of intragroup transactions. The non-controlling B AR AR K ZR S FEFERERERS

of the non-

controlling interests of the Group for the reporting period.

Sinomax Kuka and
Haining Sinomax

ERBEERR
BEERRA
2015 2014
2015 % 20145
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current assets mBEE 113,464 117,463
Non-current assets JEMENEE 13,813 15,413
Current liabilities BB E 49,871 55,352
Total equity HERAEE 77,406 77,524
Total equity attributable to non-controlling IR S R AR R
interests 37,929 37,987
2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Revenue PN 334,876 389,514
Expenses 53 310,374 372,034
Profit for the year F 1A% A 24,502 17,480
Other comprehensive (expense) FREHMEE () /A
income for the year (3,395) 360
Total comprehensive income for the year FAREBAETE 21,107 17,840
Profit for the year attributable to FEVEE AR 25 FE (5 F 008 A
non-controlling interest 12,006 8,565
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest [ FEFE R M %5 P 2 AT D AR B 7,322 6,917
Net cash inflow from operating activities LEEEIR SR AFE 22,494 17,245
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities % & /EZIR &R A (Rd) F58 2,039 (325)
Net cash outflow from financing activities mEEHR AL TR 16,934 27,484
Net cash inflow (outflow) WEMACRL) FHE 7,599 (10,564)

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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HZE2015F 1231 HILFZ
38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 19 February 2016, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into an acquisition agreement (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Jiaming, an
independent third party of the Group. Pursuant to the
Acquisition Agreement, the Group conditionally agreed to
acquire and Mr. Liu Jiaming agreed to sell 51% of the equity
interest in BXEBFTB /G4 BRAF] (" REBHFE "), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, and principally
engage in the manufacturing and sales of polyurethane
foam, sales of decorative materials, sofa materials, cloth
materials and mattress materials. The cash consideration of
the acquisition is RMB81,740,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$97,270,600).

The acquisition has been completed on 1 March 2016. The
net asset value of FX&SFTE as at 31 December 2015, based
on the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities
recorded in the unaudited financial statements prepared in
accordance with the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles, is approximately RMB82,000,000. The directors of
the Company are in the process of assessing the fair value
of assets and liabilities of B #B %7 & being acquired by the
Group at the completion date.

8. MEMKER

R2016%F 28198 » ARAFIHEE2ENE QA H
BIRALEE(REBZBLIE=F) I L KB E
([WEtHE]) - REBEKERS  2EEFEKER
EWEMARPALEERESHERA T B EEER
ANE ([EREBEH B ) H51% IR - RS & — [
RAPBEKINERAR  YTERERELEER
$HEBERBEAR A K ERMYE - DB
ARERBYRER WERSREAARYE
81,740,000 7t (FH55 1A 49 97,270,600 7T ) °

U BRI 2016F3 A1 H5E/K 2015412 A
3B ERREBEFPRAR S EREARLRE
RUBREMBRENEERBERTE - KEH
BHEEFE AN AR S2000,0007T > AR A
BEIFFEAEE R T B B AT UL EE B9 R BT
MEERBEAFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R AR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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39. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
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39. ARBZHHBEHR

COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company AR Z R &
At 31 December
M®12A31H
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FAET
TOTAL ASSETS BEE
Investments in subsidiaries R—RERB AR ZIRE 403,846 403,846
Other receivables Hith pE Y I8 651 357
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGB 293,782 113,748
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 102 1,149
698,381 519,100
TOTAL LIABILITIES weRE
Other payables HAth f& 5 5078 1,345 1,065
Amounts due to subsidiaries B A R KIE 51,768 28,870
Bank borrowings RITER - 42,500
53,113 72,435
NET ASSETS BEEFE 645,268 446,665
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR#E
Share capital R% 7 175,000 165,000
Reserves (Note) & (MfsE) 470,268 281,665
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 645,268 446,665

The Company's statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 18 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHEUNG Tung &R
Director %

SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

AATMBIRRAREN2016EIR18HEEES
HERERETE  YHERRRE

LAM Kam Cheung #$3%
Director %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 39. KRB ZMBER (&)

COMPANY (Continued)

Note: BiE
Share Accumulated
Share Capital option (losses)/
premium reserve reserve profits Total
25t
BRAD (8 BAfE BREGE (BB8) % et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET FHT FAT
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H 343,846 (5) - (20,206) 322,935
Loss for the year FAEE = - = (17,531) (17,531)
Dividend recognised as distribution WRAEDIKZ RS
(note 12) (PEE12) (16,500) - - - (16,500)
Issue of shares (note 27(b)) TR (M FE27(0)) 135,324 - - - 135,324
Capitalisation issue (note 27(a)) BT (5 27()) (149,995) - - = (149,995)
Recognition of share based payment  FERLAM(D AERE 2
expense BN - - 7,431 - 7,431
Issue of shares upon exercise of TR R BT D
share options 2 - [©) - 1
At 31 December 2014 K2014%F12A31H 312,677 (5) 7,430 (38,437) 281,665
Profit for the year F A A - - - 162,952 162,952
Dividend recognised as distribution REDIRZ B
(note 12) (PiaE12) - - - (70,000) (70,000)
Issue of shares (note 27(c)) BTN (MI7E27() 96,000 - - = 96,000
Cost of issuing new shares BEITHIRR A AR (4,157) - - = (4,157)
Recognition of share based payment  #ER AN AER 2
expense X - - 3,808 - 3,808
At 31 December 2015 M20159F12A31H 404,520 (5) 11,238 54,515 470,268
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TFEMBERE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements and the Company’s

prospectus dated 30 June 2014, is set out below:

AEEBERLEYREFRERFEAREERABHEIRH
HERELEEMBERRLAAR AR 2014F6 A30

HEBRER - #omT :

RESULTS ¥EE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
2015 % 2014 4F 20134 20124 2011 4
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHBxT FHETT T T T
Revenue A 2,869,846 2,683,408 2,369,539 1,971,495 1,778,443
Profit before tax B AT A 244,439 246,867 189,578 154,676 120,230
Income tax expenses S X (59,763) (43,920) (44,545) (39,000) (25,607)
Profit for the year £ 35 F) 184,676 202,947 145,033 115,676 94,623
Attributable to: TH)ALFEA :
Owners of the Company RARERA 172,674 194,393 135,761 108,411 87,959
Non-controlling interest FEE R = 12,002 8,554 9,272 7,265 6,664
184,676 202,947 145,033 115,676 94,623
ASSET AND LIABILITIES EERES
As at 31 December
BZE12B31BLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
2015 & 20144 20134 20124 20114
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
T T T T T
Total assets BB E 1,809,711 1,621,266 1,428,665 1,283,111 1,177,603
Total liabilities BREE (713,022) (708,153) (853,409) (803,211) (814,617)
Total equity TS AR 1,096,689 913,113 575,256 479,900 362,986
Attributable to THIALFEA :
Owners of the Company iN/NEIE =N 1,058,352 876,320 540,271 455,010 345,459
Non-controlling interest FEFERR M T 38,337 36,793 34,985 24,890 17,527
1,096,689 913,113 575,256 479,900 362,986

160 SINOMAX GROUP LIMITED
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